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2. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit attributable to owners of the Company was RMB28,456,000 for the year
and the basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share were RMB0.0374 and
RMBO0.0367 respectively.

3. DIVIDEND

The directors recommend the payment of final dividend of HK$0.01 per each
ordinary share of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Jutal
Offshore Qil Services Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014 to the shareholders.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Since the second half and, particularly, the fourth quarter of year 2014, international oil price has plummeted and the overall
operating environment of the oil and gas industry has changed drastically. Against this backdrop, we have made every effort
to ensure the smooth implementation of our ongoing projects while boosting our marketing. As such, revenue from each of
our business segments increased and our major large-scale projects commissioned by several key customers were progressing
smoothly during the year.

The third phase of our Zhuhai site was completed and put into use in the first half of 2014 and a FPSO topside project
commissioned by one of our strategic customers has been carried out. This project was also completed and delivered during
the year and our quality control and safety management fulfilled the customer’s requirement and were highly praised. The
contract with another strategic customer to fabricate subsea equipment for a deep water natural gas field in Australia was also
substantially completed and is currently undergoing the final commissioning stage. Delivery is expected in early of year 2015.
This customer also gave us quality and safety awards and has entered into a long-term global partnership agreement with us,
paving the way for further future cooperation in subsea equipment fabrication. Furthermore, after 2 years of progress, the project
to fabricate subsea equipment for the deep water gas field in South China Sea was also delivered. We have also successfully
completed a large-scale South China Sea oil and gas field renovation project which involved a total of 4 large facilities, namely
3 drilling platforms and 1 FPSO, of which 2 drilling platforms were the largest of its kind in Asia. This project is large in workload
and difficult to implement, and involves the collaboration of a number of professional areas and all the production process on a
platform. The successful implementation of the project was monumental and signified the client’s recognition of our fabrication
technique, quality control and assurance, technical capability and project management.

In year 2014, we have also undertaken a series of supply and processing equipment projects ranging from oil and gas field
equipment to oil and gas processing plants home and abroad, thereby achieving new breakthrough in terms of natural gas
processing and water treatment equipment in the offshore oil market.

Notwithstanding some impact from the overall market environment, the provision of technical supporting services for oil and
gas industry business maintained stable operation and recorded satisfactory performance in year 2014 through our marketing
effort and internal management improvement. We have made new progresses in both conventional and unconventional
businesses with new clients and new services in these markets, thus enhanced our competitiveness. Our new diving services
business has completed initial establishment and will penetrate the key offshore oil field market in South China Sea. It has already
accomplished several projects with satisfactory results.

Our associate, Penglai Jutal Offshore Engineering Heavy Industries Co. Ltd. ("Penglai Jutal”), undertook the fabrication project
of 3 trains of pipe rack modules for the LNG project in Yamal, Russia as announced by the Company on 27 August 2014. This
project represented the largest overseas fabrication order of Penglai Jutal as of the date hereof. However, its net profit for the
year was affected by the later-than-expected conclusion of this order as the overall workload for year 2014 has been decreased.
Nevertheless, Penglai Jutal has sufficient ongoing orders that have laid the solid foundation for its production and operation in
the next 2 years.
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PROSPECTS

As the international oil price is expected to stay low for a certain period of time, the global oil and natural gas development and
engineering and servicing industries are also taking a more cautious approach towards future investment and construction.
Therefore, the number of opportunities in the market is expected to be decreased. In response to these market changes, we will
take a number of initiatives in the coming year.

To effectively reduce our costs and expenditures, we have already implemented a range of measures such as redeploying and
streamlining our structure and staff, slashing and strictly controlling expenses and optimizing our production and management
procedures so as to improve our operating efficiency and maximize our performance.

In the coming year, we will put additional efforts into marketing by strengthening our marketing team, expanding our marketing
campaign, adjusting our marketing strategy and seizing every possible market opportunity and chance.

Our strategies for the oil and gas fabrication business are to master the ability to handling turnkey oil and gas equipment
contracts and the ability to fabricate large-scale modules and subsea equipment. To do so, we will further consolidate and
establish our core research, development, design and management strengths.

Insisting on steady growth and innovation, we will make concerted efforts to surmount all future challenges with a proactive and
self-confident manner in the coming year.

By Order of the Board
CAO Yunsheng

CEO

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

Turnover

In year 2014, the Group recorded turnover of approximately RMB950,881,000, representing an increase of 6.86% or
RMB61,054,000 as compared with year 2013. Revenue from the provision of technical support and related services for oil
and gas industry and sales of related equipment and materials increased by 8.30% or RMB9,406,000 as compared with year
2013. Revenue from the fabrication of oil and gas facilities and oil and gas processing skid equipment business increased
by 4.97% or RMB36,416,000 as compared with year 2013. Revenue from the provision of technical support services for
shipbuilding industry increased by 34.96% or RMB15,232,000 as compared with year 2013.

The table below set out the analysis of turnover by product or service for the preceding three financial years:

For the financial year ended 31 December

2014 2013 2012
Percentage Percentage Percentage
to total to total to total
Products/Services RMB’000 turnover (%) RMB'000  turnover (%) RMB'000  turnover (%)

1 Provision of technical support

and related services for oil

and gas industry and sales of

related equipment and materials 122,742 13 113,336 13 124,022 20
2 Fabrication of oil and gas facilities

and oil and gas processing skid

equipment 769,340 81 732,924 82 428,427 70
3 Provision of technical support

services for shipbuilding industry 58,799 6 43,567 5 56,165 10
4 Others = = - - - -
Total 950,881 100 889,827 100 608,614 100

Cost of sales and services

Cost of sales and services of the Group amounted to approximately RMB764,704,000 in year 2014, representing an increase
of 14.749% or RMB98,253,000 as compared with year 2013.

Gross profit

The total gross profit of the Group amounted to approximately RMB186,177,000 in year 2014, representing a decrease of
16.65% or RMB37,199,000 as compared with RMB223,376,000 in year 2013. The overall gross profit margin decreased from
25.10% in year 2013 to 19.58%. The gross profit margin of the provision of technical support and related services for oil and
gas industry and sales of related equipment and materials business decreased from 27.00% in year 2013 to 23.96%, whereas
the gross profit margin of the fabrication of oil and gas facilities and oil and gas processing skid equipment business
decreased from 25.60% in year 2013 to 19.41%, and the gross profit margin of the provision of technical support services
for shipbuilding industry business recorded an increase from 11.79% in year 2013 to 12.71%.
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The following shows the breakdown of gross profit by business segment during the past three years:

For the financial year ended 31 December

2014 2013 2012
Percentage to Percentage to Percentage to
Gross profit  total gross Gross profit  total gross Gross profit —total gross
Products/Services RMB'000  margin (%) profit (%) RMB'000 margin (%) profit (%) RMB'000 margin (%) profit (%)

1 Provision of technical support and

related services for oil and gas

industry and sales of related

equipment and materials 29,403 24 16 30,59 7 14 39,601 3 30
2 Fabrication of oil and gas facilities

and oil and gas processing skid

equipment 149,302 19 80 187,643 26 84 83,557 20 63
3 Provision of technical support

services for shipbuilding

industry 1472 13 4 5137 12 2 9,044 16 7
4 Qthers - - - - - - 59 - -
Total 186,177 100 23,376 100 132,261 100

Other income

Other income of the Group increased by 762.16% or RMB6,204,000 as compared with year 2013, primarily due to the
reversal of allowance for trade receivables and government grant recognised.

Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses decreased by 8.44% or RMB13,387,000 as compared with year 2013 to
approximately RMB145,199,000, primarily due to a significant decrease in provision of allowance made by the management
in respect of certain trade receivables and gross amount due from customers for contract work.

Finance costs

Finance costs reached approximately RMB16,763,000 in year 2014, which was mainly comprised of interests from bank
borrowings of approximately RMB14,970,000 and bank charges and other finance costs of approximately RMB1,793,000.
Share of profit of an associate

The Group held 30% of equity interest in Penglai Jutal. In year 2014, Penglai Jutal recorded net profit of approximately
RMB24,322,000. The Group’s share of profit from Penglai Jutal amounted to approximately RMB7,297,000 under the equity
method of accounting.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company and earnings per share

In year 2014, profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately RMB28,456,000, which represented
a decrease of 48.86% or RMB27,189,000 as compared to that of RMB55,645,000 in year 2013. Basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to owners of the Company were RMB0.0374 and RMB0.0367 respectively.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the working funds (cash on hand and bank deposits) of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB108,510,000 (2013: RMB100,265,000). During the year, net cash inflow from operating activities amounted to
approximately RMB56,076,000, net cash outflow from investing activities amounted to RMB119,044,000, and net cash
inflow from financing activities amounted to RMB71,204,000.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had banking facilities amounted to approximately RMB517,000,000 (2013:
RMB444,685,000), of which approximately RMB286,427,000 was utilized and approximately RMB230,573,000 was unutilized.
Out of the unutilized banking facilities, approximately RMB155,000,000 was available for raising bank loans. As at 31
December 2014, bank borrowings of the Group amounted to approximately RMB230,240,000.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the Company allotted and issued 40,000,000 subscription shares to certain independent investors at the
subscription price of HK$1.85 per share. 28,255,000 ordinary shares were issued upon the exercise of share options under
the Company'’s share option scheme. In addition, 20,000,000 warrants were issued to certain independent investors at the
warrant issue price of HK$0.01 per warrant pursuant to the warrants subscription agreement.

As at 31 December 2014, the share capital of the Company comprises 800,154,278 ordinary shares (2013: 731,899,278
ordinary shares).

As at 31 December 2014, net assets of the Group amounted to approximately RMB1,126,369,000 (2013: RMB1,018,554,000),
comprising non-current assets of approximately RMB1,009,436,000 (2013: RMB901,197,000), net current assets of
approximately RMB154,583,000 (2013: RMB147,785,000) and non-current liabilities of approximately RMB37,650,000 (2013:
RMB30,428,000).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

During the year, the construction of the third phase of the Zhuhai site which mainly includes the plant and ancillary
equipment and facilities was completed and put into operation. The Group has commenced the construction of the fourth
phase of the Zhuhai site which mainly includes the assembly site and ancillary equipment and facilities. It is expected
that the construction will be completed and put into operation in year 2015. The total investment is estimated to be
approximately RMB50 million. In addition, the Group has acquired a parcel of leasehold land in Zhuhai, the area of which is
approximately 78,000 square meters. This land will be used to expand the Zhuhai site.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any other significant investment.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The principal place of production and operation of the Group is in the PRC, and the functional currency of the principal
operating subsidiaries of the Group is RMB. The Group also operates its business overseas and possesses assets which are
priced in currencies other than RMB. Fluctuation of RMB against other currencies like United States Dollars ("USD") and
Hong Kong Dollars ("HKS") would bring certain foreign exchange risk to the Group. The Group would minimise the amount
of assets which are priced in other currencies like USD and HKS, perform rolling estimates on foreign exchange rates, and
would consider potential foreign exchange risk when entering into business contracts.

ASSETS PLEDGED BY THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2014, in order to obtain better financing conditions, the Group has pledged a parcel of land and a
portion of structures and plants located in Zhuhai with a carrying amount of approximately RMB214,010,000 in favor of a
commercial bank in China. Approximately RMB31,498,000 of the bank deposits were pledged as security deposits for the
issuance of performance bonds, letter of credits and bank acceptance. In addition, the Group has pledged bill receivables
of RMB19,950,000 in favor of a commercial bank in China to obtain loans in more favorable terms.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustment
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new
debts, redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is bank borrowings divided by total equity of the Group. The
Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2014 and at 31 December 2013 were as follows:

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

Bank borrowings 230,240 234,000
Total equity 1,126,369 1,018,554
Gearing ratio 20.44% 22.97%

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total 3,353 employees (2013: 3,299), of which 664 (2013: 629) were management
and technical staff, and 2,689 (2013: 2,670) were technicians.

The Group determines the remuneration and incentives of employees with reference to the prevailing industry practice,
and based on their position, duties and performance. The Group contributes to social security funds including pension
fund, medical, unemployment and industrial accident insurances for employees in the PRC, and contributes to mandatory
provident fund for employees in Hong Kong according to corresponding laws and regulations.

The Group puts emphasis on staff development, encourages employees to pursue continuous education, and formulates
training programs for employees every year.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Lishan (E3Z111), aged 56, is an executive director and the chairman of the Company, who is responsible for the overall
development strategic planning. He was graduated from Dalian Polytechnic University (K323 T K2 in 1982 with a bachelor's
degree in offshore oil construction engineering. Mr. Wang has rich experience of management and administration in the oil and
gas industries. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in Bohai Petroleurn Company Platform Manufacturing Factory (208 5 82
A ZRLIERR) from 1982 to 1988 and Offshore Oil Company of Bohai Oil Company (#1842 7)) from 1988 to 1995. Mr. Wang
joined the Group in 1995, and was appointed as an executive director in November 2005.

Mr. Cao Yunsheng (BZ24), aged 52, is an executive director and CEO of the Company, who is responsible for the overall
operations of the Group. He was graduated from Tianjin College of Finance and Economics (KJEFAZZ657%) in 1988, majoring
in accounting, and was graduated with a master degree in business administration from Tianjin University (K;ZAXE) in 2004.
Mr. Cao joined the Group in 2001 as the deputy general manager and is in charge of the finance, administration and the capital
operations of the Group and supervision of the Group's cash-flow management. Prior to joining the Group, he was the supervisor
of the finance department and chief accountant of Bohai Petroleum Company Platform Manufacturing Factory ()& A A2 &)
SEEZBLEMR), the chief accountant of China Offshore Oil Platform Construction Company (FF B8 ¥ A M F 28N 7)) and a
financial controller of CNOOC Engineering. Mr. Cao was appointed as an executive director in November 2005.

Mr. Zhao Wuhui (B8 EL &), aged 41, is an executive director and vice president of the Company, responsible for the finance and
accounting management. Mr. Zhao graduated from Northeast Forestry University (BRIEM 3 K 22) with a bachelor degree in
accounting in 1998, and obtained a MBA degree from the University of Wales in 2009. He joined the Group in March 2002, had
served as finance manager of the Group and deputy general manager of Penglai Jutal Offshore Engineering Heavy Industries Co,,
Ltd. GEHREFEF TR ETHRAF). Prior to joining the Group, he had worked with Kerry Qils & Grains (China) Co., Ltd. (3518
$&5m (P B ) A PR A 7)) and Everbright Timber Industry (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (¢ AAM T2 CFEII) AR A 7)) as accountant and

auditor. Mr. Zhao was appointed as an executive director in May 2012

Mr. Li Chunyi (Z2403%), aged 63, is an executive director and assistant president of the Company, who is in charge of the commercial
and marketing of the Bohai region. He joined the Group in 1999 and had served as the administration manager of the Group and
the deputy manager of Jutal Qilfield Services (Tianjin) Company Limited (B & B AR (K32 ) BBR A F)). Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Li was a government official. Mr. Li was appointed as an executive director in March 2015

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Su Yang (&%)¥), aged 47, is an independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Su obtained a bachelor degree in
statistics from Hunan University (85 AZ2) and the Certificate of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (I BI7E

& 5Bt E) in 1992 and 1994 respectively. He has a wealth working e><per|ence in the field of accounting. Mr. Su had been
project manager of Shenzhen Zhongcheng Certified Public Accountants G JI|FP 58 & 51 B =75 F), department manager of
Yuehua Certified Public Accountants Co Ltd. Shenzhen (RIIEZES quEﬂigﬁ%FﬁﬁﬁE &), a principal partner of Shenzhen
TaiYang Certified Public Accountants (RYIZEF EFTENE 5 FT) and a managing partner of Wuzhou Songde Certified Public
Accountants (FLMFATE Hﬁﬁ/m\;\uﬁﬂi%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ He is currently a partner of Grant Thornton Certified Public Accountants(ZX [ € &t
BSE75AT). Mr. Su was appointed as an independent non-executive director in August 2006.

Mr. Lan Rong (B48), aged 55, is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He was graduated from Jiangxi University
of Finance and Economics (T FABA A€ K &) in 1983 with a bachelor degree in investment finance and obtained a master degree in
money and banking from Xiamen University (B F9X22) in 1997. He also obtained his EMBA degree from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business ()L EFx) in 2007. Mr. Lan has rich experience in finance, banking and investments. He had worked in Fujian
Industrial Bank (8 222 2 $877) and now is the Chairman of Industrial Securities Co., Ltd. (fE 2 B 5D AR 2 7). Mr. Lan was
appointed as an independent non-executive director in May 2008.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Xiang Qiang (J858), aged 51, is an independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Xiang graduated from Beijing
Tsinghua University (&2 A 22) with a bachelor's degree in architectural structural engineering in 1986, and obtained his MBA
degree from Xiamen University (EFA£2) in 2000, studied from 2005 to 2007 and obtained EMBA degree from Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business (5T B2 B5). Mr. Xiang has extensive senior managerial experience. He has been appointed as the
general manager, chairman or president of various entities in China with focus on different areas such as hospitality, securities,
real estate project management and development, etc.. Mr Xiang is currently the executive director and president of Scitech
Group Company Limited(ZEF £ B B R 2 F]). Mr. Xiang was appointed as an independent non-executive director in May 2008.

Mr. Meng Liming (&2 %2FA), aged 62, is an independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Meng graduated from the
Tianjin Foreign Studies University (RZSNEFEZFr). In 1982 Mr. Meng joined the China National Offshore Qil Corporation
("CNOOC") (F B/ A A4 A F)) and he has served as head of certain departments, the director and general manager of
certain subsidiaries and as Chief Economist of CNOOC and other duties. Mr. Meng retired from CNOOC in December 2013. Mr.
Meng was appointed as an independent non-executive director in January 2015.

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Fung Yee Alice (Bl{) is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong, holds a Bachelor of Laws and has been a Member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries before taking up her career in law as a solicitor. She is an associate member of The
Institute of the Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom, and an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Leung has rich experience in commercial and corporate matters of all levels. Ms. Leung was
appointed as the company secretary in June 2014.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. He Rugang (&% [ll), aged 52, is the vice president of the Company, who is responsible for the Group’s commercial business
and market development. He was graduated from Tianjin University (KXZX2) with a bachelor’s degree in offshore oil
construction. Mr. He Joined the Group in 1997 as a deputy general manager, and has been in the SBM Beijing Representative
office, Dalian Shipbuilding Heavy Industry Group Offshore Engineering Co., Ltd. (REBMME T LB /FF TR BR A7), and
CNOOC North Pars project as sales manager, deputy general manager and commercial manager respectively from year 2005
to year 2010. He was appointed the current position in January 2011. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. He had worked in CNOOC
platform Fabrication Co. (/8 FZ& &2 7)) and Shenzhen Chiwan Offshore Engineering Co., Ltd. CFRIITRE /& )F TIZER
~A).

Mr. Li Jing (22¥5), aged 47, is the vice president of the Company, who is responsible for the overall management of Zhuhai Jutal
Offshore Qil Services Company Limited (“Zhuhai Jutal”) (38 B &8 ¥4 8 RGBT A 5)). He was graduated from Sun Yat-
Sen University (7 LLI K 22) with a bachelor's degree in enterprise management. Mr. Li joined the Group in 1999, and had served
as operation manager and the manager of New Star System Formwork Co., Limited (25 2 R E AR AR 2 7). Mr. Li also served
as the deputy manager of Penglai Jutal Offshore Engineering Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. GEREE/&F Ti2E T AR A 7)) from
the year 2004 to 2009. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li had worked in CNOOC platform Fabrication Co. (/&R FZ R iE N F)),
Shenzhen Chiwan Offshore Engineering Co., Ltd. GRIN7FR/E/EF T2 F R 2 &) and Shenzhen Chiwan Sambawang Engineering
Co. Ltd. (RYITREBBEE TIZBR A R).

Mr. Jin Yan (&%), aged 49, is the assistant president of the Company, who is responsible for the investor relations and the human
resource management. He was graduated from the Mechanic Engineering Faculty of Nautical College (_E/& /&8 Z2[7) (now the
Engineering Mechanic Faculty of the Logistics Engineering College of Shanghai Maritime University (/882 K£2)) in 1988.
Mr. Jin joined the Group in March 2000. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Jin was the manager and deputy general manager of the
property department of Shenzhen Gold Industries Co,, Ltd. (FYIIFE & B3 AR A 7)) and the technical supervisor and deputy
manager of the technical department of Shekou China Merchants Port Service (F8 788 4, 0 7B 15 G BR A 7).
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Mr. Xu Zhe (&%), aged 39, is the assistant president of the Company, who is responsible for the Group’s commercial and
marketing. He was graduated from Wuhan University of Water Resources and Hydroelectric Engineering (E£ 7K 7K & K £2)
with bachelor’s degree in electro technology in 1996 and obtained a degree of executive master of business administration from
the University of Texas at Arlington in 2011. Mr. Xu joined the Group in April 1998 and had served a number of positions in the
Group including the project manager, procurement manager and commercial manager of the Group.

Mr. Li Jianping (), aged 45, is the assistant president of the Company, who is in charge of the overall operation of the oil
and gas services business of the Company in south China. Mr. Li joined the Group in 1999 and has served as production manager,
marketing manager, deputy manager and general manager of the Group’s oil and gas services business sector. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr Li had worked in CNOOC platform Fabrication Co. (/8 ¥ Z£44E 2 7)), Shenzhen Chiwan Offshore Engineering Co.,
Ltd. CRINFREEE TR AR A R)) and CNOOC Engineering Shenzhen Reparation Company (& T2 &I #EE A 7)).

Mr. Tang Hui (JBE), aged 43, is the assistant president of the Company, who is in charge of engineering, procurement and
important project management of Zhuhai Jutal. He was graduated from Luoyang Institute of Technology (&F% T E2Bt) with a
bachelor’s degree in vehicle engineering. Mr. Tang joined the Group in 2000, and has served as engineer, project manager and
general manager of the Group's oil and gas services business sector. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tang had worked in Hunan
Energy Group Co., Ltd. (SR &) H £ B AR & L2 Al) and Hong Kong Far East Steel Engineering Co., Ltd. (BB Rl TIEH
(S /N=I)

Mr. Tan Boon Seng (FR3ZAX), aged 42, is the assistant president of the Company, who is responsible for the overseas marketing
and business development of the Group. He was graduated in mechanical engineering of Ngee Ann Polytechnic. Mr. Tan joined
the Group in 2014, and had served as Regional Marketing Manager. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tan had worked in Profab
Engineering Pte Ltd, Worfin Heat Exchanger Co., Pfannenberg Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. and ITT Industries.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present the annual report and the audited accounts of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPLE ACTIVITIES

The principle activity of the Company is investment holding.

The Group is mainly engaged in providing integrated services, including fabrication and technical support services in offshore oil
and gas and shipbuilding industry.

The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company's share premium reserve was approximately RMB851,024,000 (subject to section 34 of the
Cayman Companies Law and the Article of Association of the Company), and the retained earnings approximately RMB54,215,000
were available for distribution to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share premium account and the special reserve account of the
Company are distributable to the Shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Details of the Group's result for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
page 33.

The Directors recommend the payment of final dividend of HK$0.01 per each ordinary share of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2014.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement of the Group’s property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
In 2014, the authorised share capital of the Company is HK$15,000,000 (comprising 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares).

On 7 July 2014, the Company entered into a share subscription agreement to allot and issue 40,000,000 ordinary shares at the
price of HK$1.85 per share (net subscription price being approximately HK$1.848 per share, closing price as at 7 July 2014 being
HKS$1.94 per share) to not less than six subscribers which were individuals, institutional or other professional investors. The
subscription was completed on 23 July 2014. In addition, 28,255,000 ordinary shares were issued by exercising share options
under the Company’s share option scheme.

As at 31 December 2014, the share capital of the Company comprised of 800,154,278 ordinary shares (2013: 731,899,278 ordinary
shares).

Details of the movements of the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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USE OF PROCEEDS
(a) Issue of subscription shares in 2014

The net proceeds raised from issuing of 40,000,000 ordinary shares completed on 23 July 2014 amounted to approximately
HK$73,900,000.

All the proceeds were used as general working capital of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.
(b) Issue of warrants in 2014

The proceeds raised from the issue of 20,000,000 warrants pursuant to the Warrant Placing Agreement dated 7 July 2014
amounted to approximately HK$200,000, which was used as general working capital of the Group for the years ended 31
December 2014.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro
rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the reporting period, the Company issued 40,000,000 ordinary shares at the price of HK$1.85 per share, and 28,255,000
ordinary shares were issued by exercising share options under the Company’s share option scheme.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2014 neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

SHARE OPTION

The Company'’s share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was adopted on 28 August 2006 by the way of passing resolutions
by all of the then Shareholders of the Company with a valid period of 10 years commencing on the date on which the shares of
the Company commenced trading on the main board of the Stock Exchange. The Share Option Scheme enables the Company to
grant options to eligible participants as incentives and rewards for their contribution to the Group. Eligible participants include
all full time employee, Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) and part-time employees with weekly working
hours of 10 hours and above, of the Group, substantial Shareholders of each member of the Group, associates of the Directors and
substantial Shareholders of any member of the Group, trustee of any trust pre-approved by the board of Directors (the “Board");
and any advisor (professional or otherwise), consultant, distributor, supplier, agent, customer, joint venture partner, service
provider to the Group whom the Board considers, in its sole discretion, has contributed or contributes to the Group.

The General Scheme Limit of the Share Option Scheme has been refreshed and approved by Shareholder’s resolution at the
Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 27 May 2009. The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 49,800,000 Shares, representing 10% of
the shares in issue on the date of the said Annual General Meeting (498,000,000 Shares). The total number of Shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the relevant class of the shares in issue from time to time.

The General Scheme Limit of the Share Option Scheme has been further refreshed and approved by Shareholder’s resolution at
the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 25 May 2012. The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 62,279,927 Shares, representing 10% of
the shares in issue on the date of the said Annual General Meeting (622,799,278 Shares). The total number of Shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the relevant class of the shares in issue from time to time.
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According to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the consideration for the grant of the options should be HK$1.00. The
options may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during the exercise period as
determined by the Board which shall in any event not be more than ten years from the date of grant.

From 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2014, the Board approved to grant and the Company has granted options to Directors and
other eligible participants. Details of the options granted are as follows:

(i) Options granted in 2007

Number
of options
lapsed in
Closing Weighted accordance Shareholding
price of average with the percentage
the Shares closing price terms of of the
immediately of the Shares the options Number  underlying
before Number Number  immediately Number orthe  ofoptions  shares for
Exercise the date of options of options before of options ~ share option  outstanding  the Options
priceof  of granting asat exercised the dates cancelled scheme asat  intheshare
Date of grant the options  the options 1January during  of exercise during during 31 December capital of
Name of grantee of the options  Exercise period (HKS) (HKS) 2014 the year (HKS) the year the year 2014 the Company
Wang Lishan 16/03/2007 16/03/2008 to 15/03/2017 168 163 2,000,000 = = = = 2,000,000 0.25%
Cao Yunsheng 16/03/2007 16/03/2008 to 15/03/2017 168 163 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 0.12%
Chen Guocai 16/03/2007 16/03/2008 to 15/03/2017 168 163 1,000,000 = = = = 1,000,000 0.12%
Zhao Wuhui 16/03/2007 16/03/2008 to 15/03/2017 168 163 450,000 = = = = 450,000 0.06%
Other eligible participants  16/03/2007 16/03/2008 to 15/03/2017 168 163 2,810,000 2,610,000 274 = = 200,000 0.02%
Total 7,260,000 2,610,000 = = 4650000 0.58%
(ii) Options granted in 2008
Number
of options
lapsed in
Closing Weighted accordance Shareholding
price of average with the percentage
the Shares closing price terms of of the
immediately of the Shares the options Number  underlying
before Number Number  immediately Number orthe  of options shares for
Exercise the date of options of options before ofoptions ~ shareoption  outstanding the Options
priceof  of granting asat exercised the dates cancelled scheme asat  intheshare
Date of grant the options  the options 1January during  of exercise during during 31 December capital of
Name of grantee of the options ~ Exercise period (HKS) (HKS) 2014 the year (HKS) the year the year 2014 the Company
Wang Lishan 12/03/2008 12/03/2009t0 11/03/2018 162 155 2,000,000 = = = - 2,000,000 0.25%
(30 Yunsheng 12/03/2008 12/03/2009 t0 11/03/2018 162 155 1,200,000 = = = = 1,200,000 0.15%
Chen Guocai 12/03/2008 12/03/2009t0 11/03/2018 162 155 1,200,000 = = = = 1,200,000 0.15%
Zhao Wuhui 12/03/2008 12/03/2009t0 11/03/2018 162 155 500,000 = = = - 500,000 0.06%
Other eligible participants  12/03/2008 12/03/2009 to 11/03/2018 162 155 7,320,000 5,520,000 288 = 400,000 1400,000 0.17%
Total 12,220,000 5,520,000 = 400,000 6,300,000 0.79%
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(iii) Options granted in 2009

Number
of options
lapsed in
Closing Weighted accordance Shareholding
price of average with the percentage
the Shares closing price terms of of the
immediately of the Shares the options Number  underlying
before Number Number  immediately Number orthe  ofoptions  sharesfor
Exercise thedate  ofoptions  of options before  ofoptions  shareoption  outstanding  the Options
priceof  of granting asat exercised the dates cancelled scheme asat  intheshare
Date of grant the options  the options 1January during  of exercise during during 31 December capital of
Name of grantee of the options  Exercise period (HKS) (HKS) 2014 the year (HKS) the year the year 2014 the Company
Cao Yunsheng 14/08/2009 14/08/2010 o 13/08/2019 092 092 800,000 - - - - 800000 0.10%
Other eligible participants ~ 14/08/2009 14/08/2010t0 13/08/2019 092 092 1,900,000 1,200,000 219 - 500,000 200,000 0.02%
Total 2,700,000 1,200,000 - 500,000 1,000,000 0.12%
(iv) Options granted in 2010
Number
of options
lapsed in
Closing Weighted accordance Shareholding
price of average with the percentage
the Shares closing price terms of of the
immediately of the Shares the options Number  underlying
before Number Number  immediately Number orthe  ofoptions  sharesfor
Exercise thedate  ofoptions  of options before  ofoptions  shareoption  outstanding  the Options
priceof  of granting asat exercised the dates cancelled scheme asat  intheshare
Date of grant the options  the options 1January during  of exercise during during 31 December capital of
Name of grantee of the options  Exercise period (HKS) (HKS) 2014 the year (HKS) the year the year 2014 the Company
Eligible participants 27/05/2010 27/05/2013 to 26/05/2020 093 088 5400000 1,500,000 24) - - 3900000 049%
Total 5,400,000 1,500,000 - - 3,900,000 049%
(v) Options grantedin 2011
Number
of options
lapsed in
Closing Weighted accordance Shareholding
price of average with the percentage
the Shares closing price terms of of the
immediately of the Shares the options Number  underlying
before Number Number  immediately Number orthe  of options shares for
Exercise thedate  ofoptions of options before  ofoptions  shareoption  outstanding  the Options
priceof  of granting asat exercised the dates cancelled scheme asat  intheshare
Date of grant the options  the options 1 January during  of exercise during during 31 December capital of
Name of grantee of the options  Exercise period (HKS) (HKS) 2014 the year (HKS) the year the year 2014 the Company
(30 Yunsheng 23/05/2011 23/05/2013 0 22/05/2021 106 104 1,000,000 = = = = 1,000,000 0.12%
Chen Guocai 23/05/2011 23/05/2013 to 22/05/2021 106 104 500,000 500,000 252 = = = =
Other eligible participants ~ 23/05/2011 23/05/2013 0 22/05/2021 106 104 22,000,000 16,925,000 256 = 2,175,000 2,900,000 0.36%
Total 23,500,000 17,425,000 = 2,175,000 3,900,000 0:48%
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Each option granted under the Share Option Scheme during the period gives the holder the right to subscribe for one Share. The
price for granting the options is HK$ 1. The exercise price determined by the Board is not less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of the share of the Company at the time of exercise of an option.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

The Directors during the year and to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors Date of appointment Date of resignation
Mr. Wang Lishan 24 November 2005 -

Mr. Cao Yunsheng 24 November 2005 -

Mr. Chen Guocai 18 April 2007 20 March 2015

Mr. Zhao Wuhui 25 May 2012 -

Mr. Li Chunyi 20 March 2015 -

Independent Non-executive Directors Date of appointment Date of resignation
Mr. Su Yang 26 August 2006 =

Mr. Xiang Qiang 30 May 2008 =

Mr. Lan Rong 30 May 2008 =

Mr. Gao Liangyu 27 May 2009 1 January 2015

Mr. Meng Liming 1 January 2015 =

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, at each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time
being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) will retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election and shall continue as a Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial term of 3 years, unless
terminated by not less than 3 months’ notice in writing served by either the Director or the Company. In other circumstances,
each agreement can also be terminated by the Company, including but not limited to serious breaches of the Directors’
obligations under the agreement or serious misconduct.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a term of 3 years.
Save for the Directors’ fees of RMB10,000 per month for each independent non-executive Director, none of the independent
non-executive Director is expected to receive any other remuneration for holding their office as an independent non-executive
Director.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the Company has entered into any service agreements with any member of
the Group which is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

The Group's emolument policies are as follows:

(i) the amount of remuneration is determined on a case by case basis depending on the Directors or employees’ relevant
experience, responsibility, workload and the time devoted to the Group;

(i) non-cash benefits may be provided at the discretion of the Board to the relevant Directors or employees under their
remuneration package; and

(i)  the Directors or employees who are eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme may be granted, at the discretion
of the Board, the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company, as part of their remuneration package.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed in note 12 and note 43 to the consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance in relation
to the Group’s business, to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

REMUNERATION OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES

Details of Directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION OF DIRECTORS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, the interests of the Directors and their associates in the equity shares, underlying shares or debenture
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")),
to be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO referred to therein, or to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(i) The Company

Number of Shares  Approximate percentage

Name of Directors Capacity (Note 1) of shareholding

Wang Lishan Interest of a controlled 396,911,278 (L) 49.60%
corporation (Note 2)

Share options 4,000,000 (L) 0.50%

Cao Yunsheng Interest of a controlled 12,000,000 (L) 1.50%
corporation (Note 3)

Share options 4,000,000 (L) 0.50%

Chen Guocai Interest of a controlled 10,000,000(L) 1.25%
corporation (Note 4)

Share options 2,200,000 (L) 0.27%

Zhao Wuhui Share options 950,000 (L) 0.12%

(i) Associated Corporation

Percentage of
shareholding in

Name of associated Number of the associated
Name of Director corporation Capacity Shares corporation
Wang Lishan Cheung Hing Investments Beneficial owner 1 () 100%

Limited (Note 5)

Notes:

1. The letter "L” denotes a long position in the Shares.

The 396,911,278 Shares are held by Cheung Hing Investments Limited, which is wholly-owned by Wang Lishan.
The 12,000,000 shares are held by Sino Joint International Limited, which is wholly-owned by Cao Yunsheng.
The 10,000,000 shares are held by Sino Bright Management Limited, which is wholly-owned by Chen Guocai.

LA W

Cheung Hing Investments Limited in turn owns 1 ordinary share of Prospering Investments Limited (representing 100% shareholding in
Prospering Investments Limited), and 1 ordinary share of Gold Designs International Limited (representing 100% shareholding in Gold
Designs International Limited).
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company aware of any other Director or chief executive
of the Company who has any interests or short positions in any Shares and underlying shares in, and debentures of, the Company
or any associated corporation as at 31 December 2014. None of the Director or proposed Director is a director or employee of
a company which has an interest or short position in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons had has an interest or short position in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, who
is interested in 5% or more shares or underlying shares which be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO referred to therein:

Name of Shareholder Capacity Number of shares  Percentage of shareholding
Cheung Hing Investments Beneficial Owners (Note2) 396,911,278 (L) 49.60%
limited (Note 1)
Notes
1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the Shares respectively.

2. The 396,911,278 Shares are held by Cheung Hing Investments Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Lishan, our chairman, director and
substantial shareholder of the Company.

Save for the disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued
share capital of the Company which will have to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURE

Save as the options exercised by the Directors of the Company under the Share Option Scheme, no time during the year was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities, including debentures, of the Company or any other body corporate.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 77.09% of the Group's
total sales and the sales attributable to the Group's largest customer were approximately 26.31% of the Group's total sales. The
aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group'’s five largest suppliers accounted for 10.04% of the Group's
total purchases and the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier were approximately 3.34% of the Group's total
purchases.

Except Dalian Shipbuilding Industry Offshore Company Limited (“Dalian Shipbuilding Offshore”), which is an associate (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of Prospering Investments Limited, a company beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Lishan, who is the
chairman, an executive Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined under the Listing Rules), none of the
Directors, their associates or any Shareholders of the Company which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in any of the five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group's related parties or related party transactions for the year ended 31 December 2014 set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements constitute connected transactions as defined in chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(i)

(ii)

2012 Master Service Agreement

On 10 April 2012, the Company entered into a master service agreement (the “2012 Master Service Agreement”) with Dalian
Shipbuilding Offshore (a connected person of the Company by virtue of its being an associate (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of Prospering Investments Limited, a company beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Lishan, who is the chairman
of the Company, an executive Director and a controlling Shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules)), pursuant to
which Dalian Shipbuilding Offshore agrees to engage the Group to provide construction support services including
constructions and other agreed services for a term of 31 months commencing from 1 June 2012 to 31 December 2014.

As the relevant percentage ratios on an annual basis exceeds 5% and the transactions amount under the Master Service
Agreement exceeds HK$10,000,000, the continuing connected transactions constitute non-exempt continuing connected
transactions (“2012 CCT") for the Company and are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements and requires
the approval of the Independent Shareholders.

The annual caps, being the maximum aggregate value for the 2012 CCT for the periods concerned under the 2012 Master
Service Agreement are subject to annual caps and shall not exceed the amounts set out below:—

Financial year ended 31 December
(RMB million)
2012 2013 2014

Annual caps 70 90 20

The Independent Shareholders approved the 2012 CCT and the respective annual caps for the three financial years ended
31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 at the extraordinary general meeting held on 25 May 2012.

2015 Master Service Agreement

As the term of the 2012 Master Service Agreement mentioned in (i) above expired on 31 December 2014, on 2 December
2014, the Company entered into a new master service agreement (the “2015 Master Service Agreement”) with Dalian
Shipbuilding Offshore to renew the 2012 Master Service Agreement, pursuant to which Dalian Shipbuilding Offshore
agrees to engage the Group to provide construction support services including constructions and other agreed services for
a term of 36 months commencing from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017.

As the relevant percentage ratios on an annual basis exceeds 5% and the transactions amount under the Master Service
Agreement exceeds HK$10,000,000, the continuing connected transactions constitute non-exempt continuing connected
transactions (“2015 CCT") for the Company and are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements and requires
the approval of the Independent Shareholders.
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The annual caps, being the maximum aggregate value for 2015 CCT for the periods concerned under the 2015 Master
Service Agreement are subject to annual caps and shall not exceed the amounts set out below:—

Financial year ending 31 December

(RMB million)
2015 2016 2017
Annual caps 120 139 152

The Independent Shareholders approved the 2015 CCT and the respective annual caps for the three financial years ending
31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017 at the extraordinary general meeting held on 14 January 2015.

According to the Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors had reviewed annually
the continuing connected transactions mentioned in (i) (i.e. 2012 Master Service Agreement) and confirmed that the
transactions contemplated thereunder have been entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole.

Further, in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s external auditor was requested and engaged
to report on the Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The external auditor has confirmed in writing to the Board that nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the 2012 CCT:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;
(2) were not, in all material respects, entered into in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(3) were not, in all material respects, entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the transactions;
and

(4) have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in relevant announcements.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph above, there were no other contracts of significance with any member of the Group as the
contracting party and in which any of the controlling shareholder(s) possessed direct or indirect substantial interests, and which
was still valid on 31 December 2014 or any time during such year and related to the business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as at the date of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint RSM Nelson Wheeler as external auditor
of the Company. The Board confirms that there has been no change in auditors of the Company since 24 November 2005, the
date of incorporation of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Lishan
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong

31 March 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”) introduced in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules to maintain a high standards of corporate governance so as to improve the corporate transparency and protect the
interests of the Shareholders.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 December 2014,
save and except the Company provides the two board members, namely Mr. Cao Yunsheng and Mr. Zhao Wuhui, with monthly
internal financial statements, instead of all board members, because they are responsible for overseeing the financial affairs of
the Company. The remaining Directors have accessed to the monthly internal financial statements as well. The reason for such
deviation from the Code Provisions is to enhance the Company’s efficiency and confidentiality.

There are four independent non-executive Directors in the Board, all of them possess adequate independence and therefore the
Board considers the Company has achieved balance of and provided sufficient protection to its interests.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors of the Company have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

BOARD

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and four independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Lishan (Chairman), Mr. Cao Yunsheng (CEO), Mr. Zhao Wuhui, Mr. Li Chunyi

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Su Yang, Mr. Xiang Qiang, Mr. Lan Rong, Mr. Meng Liming

Mr. Wang Lishan and Mr. Cao Yunsheng are the chairman and the CEO of the Company respectively and the roles of chairman
and the CEO are segregated and not exercised by the same individual. The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

To the best acknowledgment of the Company, among the members of the Board, none of them has any financial, business and
relative relationship with the other members in the Board, including the chairman and the general manager. All of them are free
to make independent judgements.

By the terms of the service contracts, for the executive Directors, and the appointment letters, for the independent non-executive
Directors, the term for each Director is three years.

The responsibility of the Board is to lead and supervise the development direction and operation strategy of the Group, and
to decide on material affairs of the Company such as the resolution of budget, resolution of profits allocation, significant
investments and acquisitions, issue of new shares, amendments to the articles of association and appointments to senior
management of the Company. While the management of the Company was given sufficiently autonomy by the Board to
handle the daily ordinary course of administration and management, when the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, it has given clear directions as to the powers of management, in particular, with
respect to the circumstances where management shall report back and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company.
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The Board confirmed that the Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an annual
confirmation of this independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that they are independent
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

In respect of the corporate governance functions, during the year 2014, the Board performed following corporate governance
duties in accordance with the terms of reference on the corporate governance duties:

To review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

To review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of directors and senior management;
To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
To review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to directors and employees;

To review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
report.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Directors participated in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge to ensure their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant. In the year, the Company provided reading materials relating to the
corporate governance and the amendments of the Listing Rules to all the Directors. Besides, the executive Directors participated
in the courses of production and project management, the independent non-executives Directors participated in the courses
related to finance, corporate management and accounting knowledge etc. respectively.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for prepare the consolidated financial statements of the Company in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The statement of the external auditor of the company on their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the independent auditor’s report on page 32.

The Group has certain functions to be responsible for the internal control and risk management of the Company. The duties
of the departments are to audit and review regularly the financial management, production and service procedures and
documentation management system of the Company, and to report on the findings of the auditing. The executive Directors
and senior management of the Group will be given a monthly financial report and management report so as to supervise the
operation development of each business department and make reasonable planning.

The Board has conducted its annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group and agrees to the
measures taken by the management for monitoring and risk controlling. The Board considered that the management should
continue to maintain the company’s system construction, conduct regular internal audits and strengthen the risk prediction
capacity, as well as reporting on emergencies.

Furthermore, pursuant to the Code Provisions, the Board also reviewed the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The board considered it is adequate of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programmers and budget.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its duties. The
audit committee of the Company has four members, including the four independent non-executive Directors of the Company,
which are Mr. Su Yang, Mr. Lan Rong, Mr. Meng Liming (was appointed on 1 January 2015 to substitute Mr. Gao Liangyu) and
Mr. Xiang Qiang. Mr. Su Yang is the chairman of the audit committee. The primary duties of the audit committee (inter alia) are
to review the financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group, and to make proposals to the Board as to
appointment, renewal and resignation of the Company’s external auditor and the related remuneration and appointment terms.

During the year, two audit committee meetings were held in the year to discuss and approve the Company’s consolidated
financial statements and the dividend payment, renew the external auditor. The audit committee adopted the auditor’s
suggestion and comments that need to improve and made the management to implement. All members attended the meetings.
The audit committee also discussed with the management of the internal control system, reviewed the Company’s financial
controls, internal control and risk management regulations.

The audit committee oversees the financial reporting process. In this process, the management of the Company is responsible
for the preparation of Group's consolidated financial statements including the selection of suitable accounting policies.
Independent external auditors are responsible for auditing the Group’s consolidated financial statements and evaluating the
Group's system of internal controls. The audit committee oversees the respective works of the management and the external
auditors to monitor the processes and safeguards employed by them. The audit committee reports to the Board on its findings
after each of its meeting.

The audit committee reviewed and discussed with management and external independent auditors the Company's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014. The audit committee also received reports and met with the
independent auditors to discuss the general scope of their audit work and their assessment of Group internal controls.

Based on these reviews and discussions and the report of the independent auditors, the audit committee recommended for the
Board's approval of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The audit committee also reviewed and recommended to the Board approval of the unaudited financial statements for the first
six months of 2014, prior to public announcement and filing.

The audit committee recommended to the Board that the Shareholders be asked to re-appoint RSM Nelson Wheeler as the
Group's external independent auditor for year 2015.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
duties. The remuneration committee comprises of four independent non-executive Directors, which are Mr. Lan Rong, Mr. Su
Yang, Mr. Meng Liming (was appointed on 1 January 2015 to substitute Mr. Gao Liangyu) and Mr. Xiang Qiang. Mr. Xiang Qiang
is the chairman of the remuneration committee. The primary duties of the remuneration committee (inter alia) are to review and
determine the remuneration package, bonus and other allowance terms payable to Directors and senior management, and to
make proposals to the Board in respect of the remuneration policy and structure of all the Directors and senior management of
the Group.

During the year, one remuneration committee meetings were held in the year to discuss and suggest:
(1) annual salary review for 2014 for the Directors and the senior management; and
(2)  theremuneration policy.

All members attended the meeting.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
duties. The nomination committee comprises of four independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Meng Liming (was
appointed on 1 January 2015 to substitute Mr. Gao Liangyu), Mr. Su Yang, Mr. Lan Rong and Mr. Xiang Qiang. Mr. Meng Liming
is the chairman of the nomination committee. The nomination committee is responsible to make proposals to the Board in
respect of the appointment of Directors and the renewal plans of Directors. Basically the nomination procedure follows the
articles of association of the Company. In considering the candidates, the nomination committee will take into account his
past performance and experience, academic and working qualifications, general market conditions in accordance with the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules and the articles of association of the Company so as to make the composition of the
board of directors filled with a variety and a balance of skills and experience.

During the year, two nomination committee meetings was held in the year to:

(1) decide the names of the directors who should retired and be elected or re-elected at the annual general meeting;

(2)  nominate Mr. Meng Liming as the independent non-executive director to substitute Mr. Gao Liangyu; and

(3)  review the roles of directors regularly by considering the issues of conflict of interest, their performance and conduct.

All members attended the meetings.

SUMMARY OF BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Board approved to adopt the board diversity policy
in August 2013. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against appropriate
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Company commits to select the best person for the role. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

The nomination committee monitors, from time to time, the implementation of the policy, and reviews, as appropriate, to ensure
the effectiveness of the policy.

The nomination committee has reviewed the board diversity policy and considered that in order to achieve the objectives of the
board diversity policy, the nomination committee should focus more on the professional experience and technical knowledge of
the directors in their process of recommendation and recruitment.
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THE DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT THE MEETINGS

During the year 2014, the Board held fourteen board meetings. The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in the
table below:

Attendance/Number of meetings

Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Mr. Wang Lishan 12/14 - - - 1/2
Mr. Cao Yunsheng 14/14 - - - 1/2
Mr. Chen Guocai 14/14 - - - 1/2
Mr. Zhao Wuhui 14/14 - - - 2/2
Mr. Su Yang 11/14 2/2 1/1 2/2 0/2
Mr. Xiang Qiang 7/14 2/2 1/1 2/2 0/2
Mr. Lan Rong 7/14 2/2 1/1 2/2 0/2
Mr. Gao Liangyu 7/14 2/2 1/1 2/2 0/2

Under provision A.6.7 of the Code Provisions, independent non-executive directors and other non-executive directors should also
attend general meetings. Due to other business engagements, Mr. Su Yang, Mr. Xiang Qiang, Mr. Lan Rong and Mr. Gao Liangyu
could not attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 6 June 2014, and Mr. Wang Lishan, Mr. Cao Yunsheng,
Mr. Chen Guocai, Mr. Su Yang, Mr. Xiang Qiang, Mr. Lan Rong and Mr. Gao Liangyu could not attend the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 31 October 2014. However, there were other Directors present at the general meetings to
enable the Board to develop a balanced understanding of the views of Shareholders of the Company and to answer questions
raised at the general meetings.

THE AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

RSM Nelson Wheeler has been re-appointed as the Company’s external auditor at the annual general meeting of 2014 until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting. Their remuneration for providing auditing services and other services for the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 are as below:

Fee paid/payable

HKS
Audit services 1,080,000
Review of the interim report 250,000
Non-audit services 5,000

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Fung Yee Alice was appointed as the Company Secretary in 2014. Her biographical details are set out in the section
headed "Directors’ and Senior Management Biographies”. For the financial year ended 31 December 2014, Ms. Leung attended
relevant professional training for not less than 15 hours pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Each general meeting other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting. General meetings
maybe held in any part of the world as may be determined by the Board.

According to Article No.58 of the Company’s articles of association, any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board of the Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

An annual general meeting and any extraordinary general meeting at which the passing of a special resolution is to be
considered shall be called by not less than twenty-one (21) clear days’ notice. All other extraordinary general meetings may be
called by not less than fourteen (14) clear days’ notice.

Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the Company’s website and raise enquiries to our Board through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on the website.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES ON THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the year 2014, there is no significant change to the articles of association of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

@) RSM

Audit - Tax - Advisory
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

JUTAL OFFSHORE OIL SERVICES LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jutal Offshore Oil Services Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 33 to 83, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and of
the Group's results and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000

Turnover 6 950,881 889,827
Cost of sales and services (764,704) (666,451)
Gross profit 186,177 223,376
Other income 7 7,018 814
Administrative expenses (136,565) (137,539)
Other operating expenses (8,634) (21,047)
Profit from operations 47,996 65,604
Finance costs 9 (16,763) (13,731)
Share of profit of an associate 20 7,297 16,328
Profit before tax 38,530 68,201
Income tax expense 10 (10,074) (12,556)
Profit for the year 1 28,456 55,645
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 28,456 55,645
Earnings per share 14

RMB RMB
Basic 3.74 cents 8.03 cents
Diluted 3.67 cents 7.81 cents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013

RMB’'000 RMB'000
Profit for the year 28,456 55,645
Other comprehensive income:
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations 2,262 (5,619)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,262 (5,619)
Total comprehensive income for the year 30,718 50,026
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 30,718 50,026
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 15 525,442 427,337
Prepaid land lease payments 16 547 612
Goodwill 17 182,090 177,637
Intangible assets 18 3,366 1,504
Investment in an associate 20 290,314 283,017
Deferred tax assets 34 7,677 11,090
1,009,436 901,197
Current assets
Inventories 21 19,752 35,443
Trade and bills receivables 22 288,518 214,328
Gross amount due from customers for contract work 23 215,333 254,676
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 24 65,325 69,767
Due from directors 25 1,387 1,796
Due from an associate 26 170 93
Current tax assets 1,417 222
Pledged bank deposits 27 31,498 18,486
Bank and cash balances 27 95,426 99,604
718,826 694,415
Current liabilities
Trade and bills payables 28 217,164 173,720
Gross amount due to customers for contract work 23 5,452 14,844
Accruals and other payables 29 107,025 112,392
Warranty provisions 30 2,701 1,936
Bank borrowings 37 230,240 234,000
Current tax liabilities 1,661 9,738
564,243 546,630
Net current assets 154,583 147,785
Total assets less current liabilities 1,164,019 1,048,982
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000

Non-current liabilities
Deferred revenue 33 8,000 -
Deferred tax liabilities 34 29,650 30,428
37,650 30,428
NET ASSETS 1,126,369 1,018,554

Capital and reserves

Share capital 35 7,504 6,958
Reserves 38(a) 1,118,865 1,011,596
TOTAL EQUITY 1,126,369 1,018,554

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Attributable to owners of the Company

Foreign
Share Convertible currency  Share-based
Share premium Special loan notes translation payment Warrants Statutory Retained Proposed
capital account reserve  equity reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits ~ final dividend  Total equity
(Note35)  (Note38(c)(i) ~ (Note 38(c)ii)) ~ (Note38(c)vil)  (Note 38(c)v))  (Note 38(c)(il)  (Note 38(c)(vil)  (Note 38(c)(iv))

RMB'000 RVB000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB'000 RVB000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RVB00 RMB000

At 1 January 2013 6133 648,627 (52040) 2951 56,026) 16,189 27 28968 269019 10,187 874275
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (5619 - - - 95,645 - 50,026
Share-based payments - - - - - 2790 - - - - 2790
Issue of shares on subscription (note 35(d)) 400 66,995 - - - - - - - - 67,395
Issuie of shares on exercise of warrants (note 35(b)) m 19035 - - - - (267) - - - 19040
Issue of shares on exercise of share options (note 35(c)) 153 1315 - - - (5,006) - - - - 16462
Share options forfeited - - - - - 85) - - 85 - -
Transfer to statutory reserves - - - - - - - 7417 (7417) - -
Dividends paid - - - - - - - - (1.247) (10,187) (11434)
2013 proposed final dividend - - - - - - - - (11,564) 11,564 -
Changes in equity for the year 825 107,345 - - (5619) (2301) (267) 7417 35,502 1377 144279
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 6,958 755,972 (52,040) 2,951 (61,645) 13,888 - 36,385 304,521 11,564 1,018,554
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 2,262 - - - 28,456 - 30718
Share-based payments - - - - - 2133 - - - - 2133
Issue of shares on subscription (note 35(f)) 320 58,784 - - - - - - - - 59,104
Issue of warrants (note 35(g)) - - - - - - 160 - - - 160
Issue of shares on exercise of share options (note 35(e)) 226 36,268 - - - (9,057) - - - - 2,837
Share options forfeited - - - - - (832) - - 832 - -
Transfer to statutory reserves - - - - - - - 530 (530) - -
Dividends paid - - - - - - - - (173) (11,564) (11,737)
2014 proposed final dividend - - - - - - - - (6,401) 6,401 -
Changes in equity for the year 546 95,052 - - 2,262 (7,756) 160 530 2,184 (5163) 107,815
At 31 December 2014 7,504 851,024 (52,040) 2,951 (59,383) 6,132 160 36,915 326,705 6,401 1,126,369
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 38,530 68,201

Adjustments for:

Finance costs 16,763 13,731
Share of profit of an associate (7,297) (16,328)
Share-based payments 2,133 2,790
Interest income (725) (412)
Depreciation 25,256 19,105
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 65 65
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,777 903
Net (gain)/loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment (145) 133
Allowances for inventories 3,600 -
Allowances for trade and other receivables 2,513 4122
Reversal of allowance for trade receivables (3,819) -
Allowance for gross amount due from customers for contract work 1,558 12,248
Warranty provisions 765 1,408
Government grant income (1,000) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 79,974 105,966
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 12,091 (21,113)
Increase in trade and bills receivables (72,366) (104,332)
Decrease/(increase) in gross amount due from customers for contract work 37,785 (144,561)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and other receivables 5,507 (27,408)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from directors 409 (24)
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from an associate (77) 77
Increase in pledged bank deposits (589) (11,515)
Increase in trade and bills payables 43,051 31,224
Decrease in gross amount due to customers for contract work (9,392) (17,149)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and other payables (5,548) 46,824
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 90,845 (142,011)
Income taxes paid (16,711) (6,095)
Interest paid (16,265) (11,650)
Other finance costs (1,793) (2 188)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 56,076 (161,944)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 725 412
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (122,194) (74,386)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 1,372 1
Purchase of intangible assets (739) (300)
Acquisition of a subsidiary 39 (6,208) -
Government grant received 33 8,000 -
Dividends received from an associate - 30,000
Net cash used in investing activities (119,044) (44,273)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Bank loans raised 454,240 234,000
Repayment of bank loans (458,000) (126,000)
Dividends paid 13 (11,737) (11,434)
Net proceeds from issue of shares on subscription 35(f) 59,104 67,395
Net proceeds from issue of warrants 35(g) 160 -
Proceeds from issue of shares on exercise of warrants 35(b) - 19,040
Proceeds from issue of shares on exercise of share options 35(e) 27,437 16,462
Net cash generated from financing activities 71,204 199,463
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 8,236 (6,754)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 9 (1,106)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY 100,265 108,125
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 108,510 100,265
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances 95,426 99,604
Pledged bank deposits 13,084 661
108,510 100,265
Pledged bank deposits can be reconciled to the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
Pledged bank deposits (mature in three months or less) 13,084 661
Pledged bank deposits (mature after three months) 18,414 17,825
31,498 18,486
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

40

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of business is 10th Floor, Chiwan
Petroleum Building, Shekou, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Company'’s shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 December 2014, Cheung Hing Investments Limited, a company incorporated in
the Samoa, is the immediate and ultimate parent; and Mr. Wang Lishan is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
REQUIREMENTS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKCIPA”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting year
beginning on 1 January 2014. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the Group'’s
accounting policies and amounts reported for the current year and prior years as stated in note 2(a) below.

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(i) Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27, Investment entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those parents which qualify to be an investment entity as defined in the
amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities are required to measure their subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. These
amendments do not have an impact on these consolidated financial statements as the Company does not qualify to be an
investment entity.

(i)  Amendments to HKFRS 13 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

This amendment to the standard’s basis for conclusions only clarifies that the ability to measure certain short-term
receivables and payables on an undiscounted basis is retained.

(iii)  Amendment to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

This amendment clarifies that the right of set-off must not be contingent on a future event. It must also be legally
enforceable for all counterparties in the normal course of business, as well as in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy. The amendment also considers settlement mechanisms. The amendment did not have a significant effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

(iv) Amendment to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments reduce the circumstances in which the recoverable amount of assets or cash-generating units is required
to be disclosed, clarify the disclosures required, and introduce an explicit requirement to disclose the discount rate used in
determining impairment (or reversals) where recoverable amount based on fair value less costs of disposal is determined
using a present value technique. The amendments do not have an impact on these consolidated financial statements as the
recoverable amounts of assets or cash-generating units have been determined on the basis of their value in use.
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
REQUIREMENTS (CONT'D)

(a)

(b)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (cont’d)
(v)  Amendments to HKFRS 2 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

This amendment clarifies the definitions of “vesting condition” and “market condition” and adds definitions for “performance
condition” and “service condition”. The amendment is applicable prospectively to share-based payment transactions for
which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014 and had no effect on the Group'’s consolidated financial statements.

(vi)  Amendments to HKFRS 3 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

This amendment, applicable prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014,
requires any contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability (i.e. non-equity) to be measured at fair value
at each reporting date with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. It had no effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (see below)

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2014. The directors anticipate that the new and revised HKFRSs will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements when they become effective. The Group is in the process of assessing, where applicable, the potential effect of
all new and revised HKFRSs that will be effective in future periods but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and revised
HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

List of New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative*

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation®

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements*

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle®

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle®

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with earlier application permitted.

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as
from the Company’s first financial year commencing on or after 3 March 2014 in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of expected impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year and the comparative period continue to be
those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to
that Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the

Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in note 4.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the
net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating to that
subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement of changes
in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in

equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the Company’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to calculate the goodwill.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill impairment
reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control over those policies. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting rights held by other entities, are
considered when assessing whether the Group has significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right contributes
to significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements by the equity method and is initially recognised
at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested for impairment
together with the investment at the end of each reporting period when there is objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in that associate and (ii) the Group's
entire carrying amount of that associate (including goodwill) and any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If
an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the Group continues to apply the equity method and does
not remeasure the retained interest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(c)

(d)

Associates (cont’d)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests in the

associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

(iii)

JUTAL OFFSHORE OIL SERVICES LIMITED

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the Company’s presentation currency and the functional currency of the principal
operating subsidiaries of the Group.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates
at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit
or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the Company'’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the period (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of monetary items that form part of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.




3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(e)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than properties under construction as described below), are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates appropriate to write off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 20 - 44 years
Plant and machinery 5-10years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Leasehold land Over the term of the lease

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction and plant and equipment pending installation, and is stated at
cost less impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets - patents and computer software

Patents and computer software are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 4 to 5 years.

Leases

The Group as lessee

(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

(i) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance
leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset
and the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as finance lease payable. Lease
payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is
allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as owned assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(9)

(h)

(i)

1)

Leases (cont’d)
The Group as lessor
(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value for inventories of raw materials held for trading is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Net realisable value for inventories of raw materials and consumables held to be
used in construction contracts is determined by reference to the underlying specific contracts in progress in which the inventories
will ultimately be used.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting period. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately. When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue are recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will
be recoverable. The accounting policy for contract revenue is stated in (r) below.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period are recorded in the statement of financial position at the
amount of costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses and progress billings, and are presented in the statement
of financial position as “Gross amount due from customers for contract work”. When progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is recorded in the statement of financial position as “Gross amount due to
customers for contract work”. Progress billings not yet paid by the customer are included in the statement of financial position
under “Trade and bills receivables”. Amounts received before the related work is performed are included in the statement of
financial position under “Accruals and other payables”.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(k)

U

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less impairment. An impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the impairment is the difference
between the receivables’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of the impairment is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction
that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

Convertible loans

Convertible loans which entitle the holder to convert the loans into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion
price are regarded as compound instruments consisting a liability and an equity component. At the date of issue, the fair value
of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible debt. The difference
between the proceeds of issue of the convertible loans and the fair value assigned to the liability component, representing the
embedded option for the holder to convert the loans into equity of the Group, is included in equity as convertible loan notes equity
reserve. The liability component is carried as a liability at amortised cost using the effective interest method until extinguished on
conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible loans based on their relative
carrying amounts at the date of issue. The portion relating to the equity component is charged directly to equity.
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment are established.

Revenue from the sales of equipments and trading of raw materials are recognised on the transfer of significant risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the goods are delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

Revenue from the rendering of technical consultancy services and repair and maintenance services is recognised when the services
are rendered. Revenue from the rendering of services other than technical consultancy and repair and maintenance services is
recognised by reference to stage of completion using percentage of completion method as mentioned below:

Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price contract is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the percentage of contract costs incurred to date to the estimated
total costs for the contract; and revenue from a cost plus contract is recognised by reference to the recoverable costs incurred
during the period plus an appropriate proportion of the total fee, measured by reference to the proportion that costs incurred to
date bear to the estimated total costs of the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that is probable to be recoverable.

Employee benefits

(i)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
(i)  Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs and involves the payment of termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(t)

(u)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain directors and employees. Equity-settled share-based payments
are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date
of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation
rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the
period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the periods to match them with the costs
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are recorded as deferred revenue and recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because
of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(w)

(x)

Taxation (cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.
Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.
(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(if) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of the Company.
(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group
of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(y)

(aa)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets - except goodwill, inventories, deferred tax assets
and receivables, of which the policies are set out in notes 3(b), 3(h), 3(w) and 3(k) respectively, to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities

unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Group'’s position at the end of the reporting period
or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have exercised judgement on the classification and ownership of a
parcel of leasehold land acquired during the year ended 31 December 2014 that has significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

As stated in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group is in the process of applying for the land use right certificate
in respect of a parcel of leasehold land acquired during the year ended 31 December 2014. Despite the fact that the Group has not yet
obtained the relevant legal title, the directors determined to classify this parcel of leasehold land as a finance lease and include it under
property, plant and equipment, on the grounds that the risks and rewards of this parcel of leasehold land has been substantially transferred
to the Group and they expect the transfer of legal title in future should have no major difficulties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(@) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for the Group's property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2014 was approximately RMB525,442,000 (2013:
RMB427,337,000).

(b)  Revenue and profit recognition

The Group estimates the percentage of completion of the construction contracts by reference to the proportion of contract
costs incurred for work performed to date to the estimated total costs for the contracts. When the final cost incurred by the
Group is different from the amounts that were initially budgeted, such differences will impact the revenue and the profit or loss
recognised in the period in which such determination is made. Budget cost of each project will be reviewed periodically and revised
accordingly where significant variances are noted during the revision. During the year, approximately RMB828,139,000 (2013:
RMB776,491,000) of revenue from construction contracts was recognised.

(c) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. During
the year, approximately RMB10,074,000 (2013: RMB12,556,000) of income tax expense was charged to profit or loss based on the
Group's estimated profit for the year.

(d)  Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the end
of the reporting period was approximately RMB182,090,000 (2013: RMB177,637,000).
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONT’D)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

(e)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

Management determines impairment of trade and other receivables and amounts due from customers for contract work. This
estimate is based on the collection history of the respective customers and the current market condition. Management reassess
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Significant judgement is exercised for the assessment of the collectability of the receivables from each customer. In making
such judgement and estimate, management considers a wide range of factors such as results of follow-up procedures, customer
payment trends including subsequent payments and the financial condition of the respective customers. Where the actual result is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables, amounts due
from customers for contract work and the allowance charge/write-back to profit or loss in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.

As at 31 December 2014, impairment of trade and other receivables and of amounts due from customers for contract work charged
to profit or loss amounted to RMB2,513,000 (2013: RMB4,122,000) and RMB1,558,000 (2013: RMB12,248,000) respectively.

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the period in
which such estimate has been changed. Allowance for slow-moving inventories of approximately RMB3,600,000 was made for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

Accounting for variation orders of construction contracts

The Group makes claims for additional work performed, which may arise either under specific circumstances provided for under the
contracts or due to variation made to the contract specifications by customers. Where the amounts of such claims have not been
formally agreed at the end of the reporting period, the amount recoverable as estimated by management is included in the contract
value in determining the estimated profit or foreseeable loss on the contract.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's

overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group's business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally denominated in RMB, Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$") and
United States dollars (“US$"). The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2014, if the US$ had weakened 5 per cent against RMB with all other variables held constant, consolidated profit
after tax for the year and the equity would have been approximately RMB3,295,000 (2013: RMB2,174,000) lower, arising mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange loss on bank deposits and net position of trade and bills receivables and trade and bills payables
denominated in USS. If the USS had strengthened 5 per cent against RMB with all other variables held constant, consolidated profit
after tax for the year and the equity would have been approximately RMB3,295,000 (2013: RMB2,174,000) higher, arising mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange gain on bank deposits and net position of trade and bills receivables and trade and bills payables
denominated in USS.

At 31 December 2014, if the HKS had weakened 5 per cent against RMB with all other variables held constant, consolidated profit
after tax for the year and the equity would have been approximately RMB1,949,000 (2013: Nil) higher, arising mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange gain on bank borrowings denominated in HKS. If the HKS had strengthened 5 per cent against RMB with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year and the equity would have been approximately RMB1,949,000
(2013: Nil) lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange loss on bank borrowings denominated in HKS.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balances, trade and other receivables and gross amount due from customers for contract
work included in the statement of financial position represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the
Group's financial assets.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

In respect of trade and other receivables and gross amount due from customers for contract work, individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers and counterparties. These evaluations focus on the customers and counterparties’ financial position,
past history of making payments and take into account information specific to the customers and counterparties as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the customers and counterparties operate. Monitoring procedures have been
implemented to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and other receivable balance and gross amount due from customers for contract work balance at
the end of each reporting period to ensure adequate allowance are made for the estimated irrecoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2014, there were 2 (2013: 3) customers which individually contributed over 10% of the Group's trade and other
receivables. The aggregate carrying amount of trade and other receivables from these customers amounted to 33% of the Group's
total trade and other receivables as at 31 December 2014 (2013: 58%).

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

All the Group's financial liabilities mature within one year.
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5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its bank deposits and bank borrowings. Part of the Group’s bank deposits and
bank borrowings bear interests at variable rates varied with the then prevailing market condition and expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2014, if interest rates at that date had been 100 basis points lower with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year and the equity would have been approximately RMB4,643,000 higher, arising mainly as a
result of lower interest expenses from bank borrowings (2013: RMB790,000 lower, arising mainly as a result of lower interest income
from bank deposits). If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher, with all other variables held constant, consolidated profit
after tax for the year and the equity would have been approximately RMB4,643,000 lower, arising mainly as a result of higher interest
expenses from bank borrowings (2013: RMB790,000 higher, arising mainly as a result of higher interest income from bank deposits).

The Group's other fixed-rate bank borrowings and bank deposits bear fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to fair value
interest rate risks.

Categories of financial instruments at 31 December

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
Financial assets:
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 441,130 340,385
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 546,984 482,946

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their respective fair values.
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6. TURNOVER

The Group's turnover which represents sales of goods to customers and revenue from construction contracts and other services rendered
are as follows:

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

Revenue from construction contracts 828,139 776,491

Sales of goods 38,938 49,639

Other services rendered 83,804 63,697

950,881 889,827

7. OTHERINCOME

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

Government grant recognised (note (a)) 1,000 -

Interest income on bank deposits 725 412

Net gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment 145 -

Net foreign exchange gains 623 -

Reversal of allowance for trade receivables 3,819 -

Sundry income 706 402

7,018 814

Notes:

(a) During the year, government grant in relation to certain research and development activities of approximately RMB1,000,000 (2013: Nil) becomes receivable and

recognised in profit or loss as the related research and development activities have been successfully completed.

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group has three reportable segments as follows:
(a) Provision of technical support and related services for oil and gas industry and sales of related equipment and materials.
(b) Fabrication of oil and gas facilities and oil and gas processing skid equipment.
() Provision of technical support services for shipbuilding industry.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer different products and services. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment profits or losses do not include other income, administrative expenses, other operating expenses, finance costs, share of profit
of an associate and income tax expenses. Segment assets do not include goodwill, investment in an associate, current and deferred tax
assets, pledged bank deposits, bank and cash balances and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities do not include bank borrowings,
current and deferred tax liabilities, deferred revenue, and other corporate liabilities.
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8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities:

Provision of
technical support
and related
services for oil and
gas industry and
sales of related

Fabrication of oil
and gas facilities
and oil and gas

Provision of
technical support
services for

equipment and processing shipbuilding
materials skid equipment industry Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Year ended 31 December 2014
Revenue from external customers 122,742 769,340 58,799 950,881
Segment profit 29,403 149,302 7,472 186,177
Depreciation and amortisation 2,802 23,695 536 27,033
Other material non-cash items:
Allowance for trade and other receivables 49 2,454 10 2,513
Allowance for amount due from customers
for contract work - 1,558 - 1,558
Reversal of allowance for trade receivables 104 3,715 - 3,819
Additions to segment non-current assets 11,537 116,429 257 128,223
As at 31 December 2014
Segment assets 47,225 1,008,043 26,109 1,081,377
Segment liabilities 24,102 257,738 13,217 295,057
Year ended 31 December 2013
Revenue from external customers 113,336 732,924 43,567 889,827
Segment profit 30,596 187,643 5137 223376
Depreciation and amortisation 2,466 16,104 1,438 20,008
Other material non-cash items:
Allowance for trade and other receivables 600 3,480 42 4122
Allowance for amount due from customers
for contract work - 11,555 693 12,248
Additions to segment non-current assets 1,292 73,486 15 74,793
As at 31 December 2013
Segment assets 44,071 916,783 18,810 979,664
Segment liabilities 30,047 238,951 18,581 287,579
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities:

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
Profit or loss
Total profit or loss of reportable segments 186,177 223,376
Unallocated amounts:
Finance costs (16,763) (13,731)
Other income 7,018 814
Other corporate expenses (145,199) (158,586)
Share of profit of an associate 7,297 16,328
Consolidated profit before tax for the year 38,530 68,201
Assets
Total assets of reportable segments 1,081,377 979,664
Unallocated amounts:
Bank and cash balances 95,426 99,604
Pledged bank deposits 31,498 18,486
Current tax assets 1,417 222
Deferred tax assets 7,677 11,090
Investment in an associate 290,314 283,017
Goodwill 182,090 177,637
Other corporate assets 38,463 25,892
Consolidated total assets 1,728,262 1,595,612
Liabilities
Total liabilities of reportable segments 295,057 287,579
Unallocated amounts:
Bank borrowings 230,240 234,000
Current tax liabilities 1,661 9,738
Deferred revenue 8,000 -
Deferred tax liabilities 29,650 30,428
Other corporate liabilities 37,285 15,313
Consolidated total liabilities 601,893 577,058
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)
Geographical information:

The Group's revenue from external customers by location of customers and information about its non-current assets (excluding deferred
tax assets) by location of assets are detailed below:

Revenue Non-current assets
2014 2013 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
PRC except Hong Kong 576,354 454,644 1,001,449 889,692
Hong Kong - - 310 412
Portugal 84,369 154,664 - -
Singapore 133,546 142,573 - -
France 122,935 18,423 - -
Other Asian Countries 22,661 110,816 - -
Others 11,016 8,707 - 3
Consolidated total 950,881 889,827 1,001,759 890,107
Revenue from major customers:
Provision of
technical support
and related
services for oil and Fabrication of oil Provision of
gas industry and and gas facilities technical support
sales of related and oil and gas services for
equipment and processing shipbuilding
materials skid equipment industry Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Year ended 31 December 2014
Customer A 62,074 182,519 5,614 250,207
Customer B - 119,810 3,124 122,934
Customer C 11,407 64,201 46,301 121,909
Customer D - 121,707 - 121,707
Customer E - 115,287 999 116,286
Customer F - 84,016 - 84,016
Year ended 31 December 2013
Customer A 51,199 151,651 - 202,850
Customer B - 2,175 16,248 18,423
Customer C 20,486 48,841 27,180 96,507
Customer D 2 128,945 - 128,947
Customer E - 68,949 139 69,088
Customer F 931 153,733 - 154,664
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9. FINANCE COSTS

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
Interest on bank borrowings 16,265 11,650
Amount capitalised (1,295) (107)
14,970 11,543
Others 1,793 2,188
16,763 13,731
Borrowing costs on funds borrowed generally are capitalised at a rate of 6.1% per annum (2013: 6.2%).
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Provision for the year 7,918 11,119
(Over)/under-provision in prior years (479) 116
7,439 11,235
Deferred tax (note 34) 2,635 1,321
10,074 12,556

(@) Hong Kong Profits Tax
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the Group has no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

(b) PRCEnterprise Income Tax

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the applicable PRC Enterprise Income Tax rates of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries

are as follows:
(i) Zhuhai Jutal Offshore Oil Services Company Limited (“Zhuhai Jutal”)

Zhuhai Jutal is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC. Zhuhai Jutal was approved to be recognised as a
new and high technology enterprise since the year ended 31 December 2010 and has renewed during the year ended 31
December 2013. Zhuhai Jutal is therefore entitled to enjoy a reduced income tax rate of 15% from year 2013 to year 2015.

(i) The tax rate applicable to other Group’s PRC subsidiaries were 25% during the year.

(c)  Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices in respect thereof.
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product of profit before tax multiplied by the PRC enterprise income tax rate

is as follows:
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
Profit before tax (excluding share of profit of an associate) 31,233 51,873
Tax at the PRC enterprise income tax rate of 25% (2013: 25%) 7,808 12,968
Tax effect of income that is not taxable (1,620) (650)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 7,558 8,121
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 1,236 1,508
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised (279) (7,865)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised (301) (46)
Deferred tax on undistributed earnings of the PRC subsidiaries and
an associate 292 579
Tax benefit for qualifying research and development expenditure (2,414)
(Over)/under-provision in prior years (479) 116
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries (1,727) (2,175)
Income tax expense 10,074 12,556

The deferred tax balances have been adjusted to reflect the tax rates that are expected to apply to the respective periods when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled.

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging the following:

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

Amortisation of intangible assets 1,777 903

Cost related to acquisition of a subsidiary 105 -

Depreciation 25,256 19,105

Directors’ emoluments (note 12) 6,432 4,727

Net loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment - 133

Net foreign exchange losses* - 4,128

Operating lease charges

- Hire of plant and equipment 18,957 11,185

- Land and buildings 10,658 9,152

Auditor’s remuneration 1,348 1,144

Cost of inventories utilised in construction contracts and sold 222,118 224,798

Allowance for inventories® 3,600 -

Allowance for trade and other receivables* 2,513 4,122

Allowance for gross amount due from customers for contract work* 1,558 12,248
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments

— Salaries, bonuses and allowances 324,869 269,666

- Retirement benefits scheme contributions 12,011 10,034

- Share-based payments 2,133 2,790

339,013 282,490

*

These amounts are included in "Other operating expenses”
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of each director were as follows:

Retirement
benefits
Salaries and Discretionary  Share-based scheme
Fees allowances bonus payments contributions Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Executive directors
Wang Lishan - 1,920 - - 40 1,960
Cao Yunsheng - 1,642 - 68 40 1,750
Chen Guocai (note (b)) - 1,242 - 68 40 1,350
Zhao Wuhui - 852 - - 40 892
= 5,656 = 136 160 5,952
Independent non-executive
directors
Su Yang 120 - - - - 120
Lan Rong 120 - - - - 120
Xiang Qiang 120 - - - - 120
Gao Liangyu (note (a)) 120 - - - - 120
480 - - - - 480
Total for 2014 480 5,656 - 136 160 6,432
Executive directors
Wang Lishan - 1,341 - - 24 1,365
Cao Yunsheng - 1,042 - 84 24 1,150
Chen Guocai (note (b)) - 1,042 - 84 24 1,150
Zhao Wuhui - 558 - - 24 582
- 3,983 - 168 96 4,247
Independent non-executive
directors
Su Yang 120 - - - - 120
Lan Rong 120 - - - - 120
Xiang Qiang 120 - - - - 120
Gao Liangyu (note (a)) 120 - - - - 120
480 - - - - 480
Total for 2013 480 3,983 - 168 96 4,727
Notes:
(a) Mr. Gao Liangyu resigned as independent non-executive director subsequent to the financial year on 1 January 2015.
(b) Mr. Chen Guocai resigned as executive director subsequent to the financial year on 20 March 2015.
(c) Mr. Meng Liming was appointed as independent non-executive director subsequent to the financial year on 1 January 2015.
(d) Mr. Li Chunyi was appointed as executive director subsequent to the financial year on 20 March 2015.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013.
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT'D)

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year included three (2013: three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the

analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2013: two) individuals are set out below:

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
Basic salaries and allowances 2,565 2,264
Discretionary bonus - -
Share-based payments 252 326
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 40 24
2,857 2,614
The emoluments fell within the following band:

Number of individuals
2014 2013
HKS$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 (approximately RMB800,001 to RMB1,200,000) 1 1
HKS$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 (approximately RMB1,200,001 to RMB1,600,000) - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 (approximately RMB1,600,001 to RMB2,000,000) 1 -

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join

or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

13. DIVIDENDS

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

2013 final dividend of HK$0.02 (2013: 2012 final dividend of HK$0.02)
per ordinary share 11,737 11,434

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 of HK$0.01 per share has

been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming general meeting.
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following:

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
Earnings
Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic and diluted earnings per share 28,456 55,645
2014 2013
Number of shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 731,899,278 628,799,278
Effect of shares issued on subscription 17,753,425 30,547,945
Effect of shares issued on exercise of share options 11,857,123 11,229,658
Effect of shares issued on exercise of warrants - 21,972,603
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating basic earnings per share 761,509,826 692,549,484
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares arising from share options 13,247,330 12,945,157
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares arising from warrants - 6,888,470
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share 774,757,156 712,383,111

Basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number of the ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year after adjusting for the number of diluted
potential ordinary shares granted under the Company's share option scheme.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
Plantand fixtures and Motor  Leasehold Construction
Buildings  machinery equipment vehicles land in progress Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Cost

At 1 January 2013 158,676 48,093 15,244 16,970 192,773 890 432,646
Additions 638 10,595 3,620 1,269 - 58,371 74,493
Reclassification 26,537 - - - - (26,537) -
Disposals - (203) (256) - - - (459)
Exchange realignment - 9) 5) (14) - - (28)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 185,851 58,476 18,603 18,225 192,773 32,724 506,652
Additions 1,607 19,603 4,662 2,621 38,409 56,587 123,489
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) - 1,008 10 77 - - 1,095
Reclassification 73,783 12,599 - - - (86,382) -
Disposals - (2,793) (736) (916) - - (4,445)
Exchange realignment - 6 15 7 - - 28
At 31 December 2014 261,241 88,899 22,554 20,014 231,182 2,929 626,819

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2013 15411 19,962 7,399 11,707 6,069 - 60,548
Charge for the year 5431 4914 2,749 1,727 4,284 - 19,105
Disposals - (69) (256) - - - (325)
Exchange realignment - (7) (5 (1) - - (13)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 20,842 24,800 9,887 13,433 10,353 - 79,315
Charge for the year 7,812 7,678 3,276 1,886 4,604 - 25,256
Disposals - (2,016) (296) (906) = = (3,218)
Exchange realignment - 6 16 2 - - 24
At 31 December 2014 28,654 30,468 12,883 14,415 14,957 - 101,377

Carrying amount

At 31 December 2014 232,587 58,431 9,671 5,599 216,225 2,929 525,442

At 31 December 2013 165,009 33,676 8,716 4,792 182,420 32,724 427,337

At 31 December 2014 the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB214,010,000 (2013: RMB219,847,000).

At 31 December 2014, the Group was in the process of applying for the land use rights certificate in respect of a parcel of leasehold land
acquired during the year ended 31 December 2014 with carrying amount of approximately RMB38,089,000.

The Group'’s leasehold land represent payments for land use rights situated in the PRC under medium-term leases.
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
At 1 January 612 677
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments (65) (65)
At 31 December 547 612
The Group's prepaid land lease payments represent payments for land use rights situated in the PRC under medium-term leases.
17. GOODWILL

RMB'000

Cost and carrying amount
At 1 January 2013 182,135
Exchange difference (4,498)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 177,637
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) 2,204
Exchange difference 2,249
At 31 December 2014 182,090

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs") that are expected to benefit
from that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

The share of interest in an associate — Penglai Jutal Offshore Engineering
Heavy Industries Company Limited (“Penglai Jutal”) 179,886 177,637
Undersea maintenance services 2,204 -
At 31 December 182,090 177,637

As at 31 December 2014, no impairment loss on goodwill is recognised.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined on the basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow method. The
key assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates, budgeted gross margin and
turnover during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the business of the CGUs. The growth rates are based on long-term average economic growth rate
of the geographical area in which the businesses of the CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based on past practices
and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five years
with the residual period using the growth rate of 5% (2013: 5%) and 3% (2013: N/A) for the Group's share of interest in Penglai Jutal and
undersea maintenance services activities respectively. These rates do not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the Group's share of interest in Penglai Jutal and undersea maintenance services
activities are 13.63% (2013: 15.20%) and 19.02% (2013: N/A) respectively.
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Patents and
computer software

RMB'000
Cost
At 1 January 2013 4,415
Additions 300
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 4,715
Additions 739
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) 2,900
At 31 December 2014 8,354
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2013 2,308
Amortisation for the year 903
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 3,211
Amortisation for the year 1,777
At 31 December 2014 4,988
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2014 3,366
At 31 December 2013 1,504

The Group's patents and computer software protect the design and specification of certain type of the Group’s products and services. The
average remaining amortisation period of patents and computer software is 3.2 years (2013: 2.3 years).
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19. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the major subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Percentage of ownership
interest/ voting power/

registration Issued and profit sharing

Name and operation  paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities

Directly held:

Jutal Investment Limited British Virgin 5 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding

Islands USST each

Indirectly held:

Jutal Engineering Company Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of - 100%  Provision of technical support and related
Limited HKS1 each services for oil and gas industry and sale

of related equipment and materials

Jutal Holdings Limited British Virgin 2 ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding

Islands USST each

Hong Kong Jutal Holdings Hong Kong 157,045,432 - 100%  Investment holding

Limited ordinary shares of
HKS1 each

Stand Success Resources British Virgin 1 ordinary share of - 100%  Investment holding
Limited Islands Y

BEEhAR%E(KE) PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Provision of technical support and related
BRAF* HK$10,000,000 services for oil and gas industry and sale
(Jutal Qilfield Services of related equipment and materials
(Tianjin) Company Limited)

T EEEEE PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Fabrication of oil and gas facilities and oil
ARDEH RMB200,000,000 and gas processing skid equipment,
(Shenzhen Jutal provision of technical supporting and
Machinery Equipment related services for oil and gas industry
Company Limited) and sale of related equipment and

materials and provision of technical
support services for shipbuilding
industry

BB ESER MRS PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Design and manufacture of oil and gas
BRAF US$48,153,678 processing skid equipment
(Zhuhai Jutal Offshore Oil
Services Company Limited)

BEEEMMIRRE PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Provision of technical support services for
(RE)BRAR! HK$33,330,000 shipbuilding industry
(Jutal Offshore Shipbuilding
Services (Dalian) Company
Limited)

KEBEERRIRE PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Provision of technical support and related
BRAF RMB 10,000,000 services for oil and gas industry
(Chengdu Jutal Oil and Gas
Engineering Co,, Ltd.)

FYITE §EKIR PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Provision of undersea maintenance

LEYNGT
(Shenzhen Marine Diving
Engineering
Co,, Ltd)

RMB10,000,000

services

*

Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise established in the PRC

# Registered as a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, the bank and cash balances of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to
approximately RMB105,007,000 (2013: RMB102,858,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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20. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

Unlisted investments:
Share of net assets 290,314 283,017

Details of the Group's associate at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

Percentage of

Place of incorporation/ ownership interest/

registration and Issued and voting power/

Name operation paid up capital profit sharing

Penglai Jutal Offshore Engineering PRC Registered capital of 30%
Heavy Industries Company Limited US$43,500,000

ERBEFSXTIRETIARAF)

Principal activities:

(a) Sales and construction of (i) facilities for provision of offshore oil and natural gas exploration; (ii) quayside machineries and (iii)
chemical engineering facilities;

(b) Design, fabrication, installation and repair of steel formation structures; and
(c) Provision of other quayside and warehouse services.

Penglai Jutal is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method. The summarised financial information
presented is based on the HKFRS financial statements of Penglai Jutal.

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
At 31 December
Non-current assets 940,912 976,252
Current assets 582,616 481,573
Non-current liabilities (182,790) (138,494)
Current liabilities (373,026) (375,940)
Net assets 967,712 943,391
Group's share of net assets 290,314 283,017
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
Year ended 31 December
Revenue 707,959 878,401
Profit from continuing operations 24,322 54,428
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income 24,322 54,428
Dividends received from the associate - 30,000

As at 31 December 2014, the bank and cash balances of the Group’s associate in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB74,633,000 (2013: RMB92,685,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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21. INVENTORIES

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

Raw materials 19,752 35,443

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

Trade receivables 263,766 215,136
Allowance for doubtful debts (7,463) (8,808)
256,303 206,328

Bills receivables 32,215 8,000
288,518 214,328

The Group's trade receivables mainly represent progress billings receivables from contract customers.

The Group's trading terms with contract customers are mainly on credit. The credit terms other than retentions receivables generally
range from 30 to 90 days. The credit terms for retentions receivables generally range from 12 to 24 months after the completion of the
contracts. Application for progress payment of contract works is made on a regular basis. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

0to 30 days 95,784 58,397
31to 90 days 102,574 116,924
91 to 365 days 43,502 21,220
Over 365 days 14,443 9,787
256,303 206,328

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables aged over 90 days includes retentions receivables which amounted to approximately
RMB7,335,000 (2013: RMB6,390,000).

At 31 December 2014, bills receivables of RMB19,950,000 (2013: Nil) were pledged to a bank to secure certain bank loans obtained.

As at 31 December 2014, an allowance was made for estimated irrecoverable trade receivables of approximately RMB7,463,000 (2013:
RMB8,808,000). The reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables is as follows:

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

At 1 January 8,808 5,822
Allowance for the year 2,474 3,164
Reversal (3,819) -
Amounts written off - (178)
At 31 December 7,463 8,808
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONT'D)

As of 31 December 2014, trade receivables of approximately RMB44,116,000 (2013: RMB52,524,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables

is as follows:
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
Up to 3 months 31,860 46,798
3 to 6 months 8,128 4,579
Over 6 months 4,128 1,147
44,116 52,524

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and bills receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

RMB 184,104 147,015

uss 104,414 67,313

Total 288,518 214,328
23. GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses to date 1,212,844 1,150,568

Less: Progress billings (1,002,084) (906,351)

Less: Exchange differences (879) (4,385)

209,881 239,832

Gross amount due from customers for contract work 215,333 254,676

Gross amount due to customers for contract work (5,452) (14,844)

209,881 239,832

In respect of construction contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period, retentions receivables included in trade and bills
receivables amounted to approximately RMB8,710,000 (2013: RMB10,509,000). The amount of retentions receivables expected to be
recovered after more than twelve months is approximately RMB2,938,000 (2013: RMB1,040,000).

Advances received in respect of construction contracts amounted to approximately RMB7,445,000 at 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB32,983,000) and is included in accruals and other payables.

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

Prepayments 17,549 52,552
Deposits 5,355 4,239
Other receivables 44,578 15,094
67,482 71,885

Less: Allowance for other receivables (2,157) (2,118)
65,325 69,767
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

As at 31 December 2014, an allowance was made for estimated irrecoverable other receivables of approximately RMB2,157,000 (2013:

RMB2,118,000). The reconciliation of allowance for other receivables is as follows:

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

At 1 January 2,118 1,160
Allowance for the year 39 958
At 31 December 2,157 2,118

25. DUE FROM DIRECTORS

Amounts due from directors disclosed pursuant to section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

Maximum amount

Balance at Balance at outstanding during

Name Terms 31 December 2014 1 January 2014 the year

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Wang Lishan Unsecured, interest-free and 746 1,291 1,729
no fixed repayment terms

Cao Yunsheng Unsecured, interest-free and 641 499 645
no fixed repayment terms

Chen Guocai Unsecured, interest-free and - 6 76
no fixed repayment terms

1,387 1,796

26. DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment terms.

27. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND CASH BALANCES

The Group's pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group as set out in

note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amounts of the Group's pledged bank deposits and bank and cash balances are denominated in the following currencies:

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

RMB 105,007 102,858
HKS 3,470 1,416
uss 18,366 13,728
Macau Pataca 81 88
126,924 118,090

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,

Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
Trade payables 205,777 162,954
Bills payables 11,387 10,766
217,164 173,720
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of receipt of goods and services, is as follows:
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
0to 30 days 65,274 83,156
31 to 90 days 42,236 48,170
91 to 365 days 89,636 27,221
Over 365 days 8,631 4,407
205,777 162,954
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and bills payables are denominated in the following currencies:
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
RMB 211,191 168,399
uss$ 5,973 5,321
Total 217,164 173,720
29. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
Accrued staff salaries 53,799 45,717
Receipt in advances 7,445 32,983
Other payables 43,569 31,871
Others 2,212 1,821
107,025 112,392
30. WARRANTY PROVISIONS
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
At 1 January 1,936 528
Additional provisions 765 1,408
At 31 December 2,701 1,936

The warranty provision represents the Group’s best estimate of the Group's liability under 18 — 60 months warranties granted to its

customers on fabrication of subsea equipment contracts, under which defective works are rectified or replaced.

The amount of the warranty provision is estimated based on the industry average of the level of defective works and the estimation basis

is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.
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31. BANK BORROWINGS

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

Bank borrowings 230,240 234,000

The bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

On demand or within one year 230,240 234,000

In the second year - -

230,240 234,000

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current liabilities) (230,240) (234,000)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months - -
The carrying amounts of the Group's bank borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

RMB 149,950 234,000

HKS 52,000 -

us$ 28,290 -

230,240 234,000

The average interest rate of the Group's bank borrowings at 31 December 2014 was 5.78% (2013: 5.77%) per annum.

Bank borrowings of approximately RMB158,290,000 (2013: RMB234,000,000) are arranged at fixed interest rates and expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. Other bank borrowings (2013: Nil) were arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.

Bank borrowings of approximately RMB55,950,000 (2013: RMB80,000,000) are secured by a charge over the Group's property, plant and
equipment (note 15) and bills receivables (note 22) amounted to approximately RMB214,010,000 and RMB19,950,000 respectively (2013:
property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately RMB219,847,000).

32. BANKING FACILITIES
At 31 December 2014, the Group had approximately RMB431,068,000 (2013: RMB165,316,000) of available undrawn banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had obtained bank guarantees under performance bonds for construction contracts of approximately
RMB57,718,000 (2013: RMB44,869,000).
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33. DEFERRED REVENUE

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

At 1 January - _

Addition during the year 8,000 -

At 31 December 8,000 -
Analysed as:

Non-current liabilities 8,000 -

During the year, the Group received approximately RMB8,000,000 (2013: Nil) government grant in relation to a development project,
including certain research and development activities, construction of production premises and acquisition of plant and machineries, in a
parcel of leasehold land with site area of 77,650 square meters located in the Equipment Manufacture Area of Gaolan Port Economic Zone
in Zhuhai Province in the PRC.

The grant is recognised as deferred revenue and a portion of the deferred revenue will be credited to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the useful lives of the related assets when the assets are ready for management’s intended used. The remaining portion will be
credited to profit or loss when the related research and development activities are successfully completed. The Group has an obligation
to repay the grant if the grant is not utilised for the development project. No deferred revenue is transferred to profit or loss as the related
development project has not commenced at the end of the reporting period.

34. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group.

Undistributed
Accelerated  Investment  Recognition earnings
tax inan of contracting of the PRC
depreciation associate income  subsidiaries Tax losses Others Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
At 1 January 2013 1,730 17,759 (1,819) 2,067 - (1,720) 18,017
Charge to profit or loss for the year (note 10)
- Changes in temporary differences 500 399 9,901 180 (9,193) (466) 1,321
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 2,230 18,158 8,082 2,247 (9,193) (2,186) 19,338
Charge to profit or loss for the year (note 10)
- Changes in temporary differences (61) 532 (521) (238) 6,133 (3,210) 2,635
At 31 December 2014 2,169 18,690 7,561 2,009 (3,060) (5,396) 21,973

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for statement of financial position purposes:

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

Deferred tax liabilities 29,650 30,428
Deferred tax assets (7,677) (11,090)
21,973 19,338

At the end of reporting period the Group has unused tax losses of approximately RMB30,954,000 (2013: RMB51,525,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of approximately RMB12,238,000 (2013: RMB36,774,000) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining approximately RMB18,716,000 (2013: RMB14,751,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately RMB4,943,000, RMB21,000
and RMB315,000 that can be carried forward by five years, two years and one year respectively. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely (2013: all the unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely).
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34. DEFERRED TAX (CONT'D)

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
and an associate for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised is approximately RMB10,462,000 (2013: RMB10,025,000). No
liability has been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is in a position to control the timing of reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

35. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of Shares Amount
Note HKS$'000
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 (2013: HK$0.01) each
At 1 January 2013 700,000,000 7,000
Creation of additional ordinary shares (a) 800,000,000 8,000
At 31 December 2013, 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 1,500,000,000 15,000

Equivalent to

Number of Shares Amount Amount
Note HK$'000 RMB'000
Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of HK0.01 (2013: HK$0.01) each
At 1 January 2013 628,799,278 6,288 6,133
Exercise of warrants (b) 34,000,000 340 272
Exercise of share options (c) 19,100,000 191 153
Issue of shares on subscription (d) 50,000,000 500 400
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 731,899,278 7,319 6,958
Exercise of share options (e) 28,255,000 283 226
Issue of shares on subscription () 40,000,000 400 320
At 31 December 2014 800,154,278 8,002 7,504
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35.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D)

Note:

(a)

(b)

(@

(d)

(e)

()

By an ordinary resolution passed at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 26 April 2013, the authorised ordinary share capital of the Company was increased
from HKS 7,000,000 to HKS 15,000,000 by the creation of 800,000,000 shares of HKS0.01 each, such new shares ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing

shares of the Company.

On 11 September 2012, the Company and President Securities (Hong Kong) Limited entered into a warrant placing agreement in respect of the placement of
34,000,000 warrants of HKS0.01 each to independent investors. Each warrant entitle the holder to subscribe for one new ordinary share of the Company at
subscription price of HKS0.7 for a period of 24 months from the date of issue. The placement was completed on 25 September 2012 and the proceeds on the issue

of warrants, amounting to approximately RMB267,000, net of warrant issue expenses, was credited to the Company’s warrants reserve account.

34,000,000 warrants were exercised by the warrant holders during the year ended 31 December 2013 to subscribe for a total of 34,000,000 ordinary shares in
the Company at total consideration of approximately HK$23,800,000, equivalent to approximately RMB19,040,000 of which approximately RMB272,000 was
credited to share capital and the balance of approximately RMB18,768,000 was credited to the share premium account. Approximately RMB267,000 has been
transferred from the warrants reserve to the share premium account.

Share options were exercised by option holders during the year ended 31 December 2013 to subscribe for a total of 19,100,000 ordinary shares in the Company
at total consideration of approximately HK$20,576,000, equivalent to approximately RMB16,46.2,000 of which approximately RMB153,000 was credited to share
capital and the balance of approximately RMB16,309,000 was credited to the share premium account. Approximately RMB5,006,000 has been transferred from
the share-based payment reserve to the share premium account.

On 10 May 2013, Cheung Hing Investments Limited (the immediate parent of the Company and is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Lishan, who is the chairman and
an executive director of the Company) (“Cheung Hing") entered into the placing and subscription agreement with the Company, and Oriental Patron Securities
Limited (the "Placing Agent’) pursuant to which (i) Cheung Hing has agreed to place and the Placing Agent has agreed to procure the placing of maximum
50,000,000 existing shares of the Company, to not less than six independent placees at HKS1.73 per share. (the “Placing”) (i) Cheung Hing has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue shares which are equal to the number of the shares places under the Placing
at HKS1.73 per subscription share (the “Subscription”).

The Placing was completed on 13 May 2013 and 50,000,000 existing shares of the Company were placed by Cheung Hing through the Placing Agent to not less
than six placees.

The Subscription was completed on 23 May 2013 and 50,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HKS0.01 each were allotted and issued to Cheung Hing.
The premium on the issue of shares, amounting to approximately RMB66,995,000, net of share issue expenses, was credited to the Company’s share premium

account.

Share options were exercised by option holders during the year ended 31 December 2014 to subscribe for a total of 28,255,000 ordinary shares in the Company
at total consideration of approximately HKS$34,297,000 equivalent to approximately RMB27,437,000 of which approximately RMB226,000 was credited to share
capital and the balance of approximately RMB27,211,000 was credited to the share premium account. Approximately RMB9,057,000 has been transferred from
the share-based payment reserve to the share premium account.

On 7 July 2014, the Company and not less than six independent investors entered into a share subscription agreement in respect of subscription of 40,000,000
ordinary shares of HKS0.01 each to the independent investors at a price of HKS1.85 per share. The subscription was completed on 23 July 2014 and the premium

on the issue of shares, amounting to approximately RMB58,784,000, net of share issue expenses, was credited to the Company’s share premium account.

On 7 July 2014, the Company and not less than six independent entered into a warrants subscription agreement in respect of subscription of 20,000,000 warrants
of HKS0.01 each to the independent investors. Each warrant entitle the holder to subscribe for one new ordinary share of the Company at subscription price of
HKS$2.1 at any time during a period from the seventh months to thirty-sixth months commencing from the date of issue of the warrants. The subscription was
completed on 23 July 2014 and the proceeds on the issue of warrants, amounting to approximately RMB160,000, net of warrant issue expenses, was credited to
the Company’s warrants reserve account.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the

return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the

light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital

structure, the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing debts or

sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is bank borrowings divided by total equity of the Group. The Group's policy is to

keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.
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35.

36.
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SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D)

The gearing ratio as at the 31 December 2014 is as follows:

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

Bank borrowings 230,240 234,000
Total equity 1,126,369 1,018,554
Gearing ratio 20.44% 22.97%

The slightly decrease in gearing ratio from year ended 31 December 2013 was mainly because the construction of the third phase of the
Group's fabrication site located in Zhuhai was substantially completed during the year ended 31 December 2014. The directors consider
that the Group has sufficient funds to maintain the existing working capital requirement through cash flows generated from operation;
existing level of bank borrowings and fund obtained from issue of additional shares.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public
float of at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a report from the share registrars monthly on substantial share interests showing
the non-public float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout the year. As at 31 December 2014, 47.65%
(2013:42.76%) of the shares were in public hands.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants include the full time and part-time employees, directors
(including independent non-executive directors), substantial shareholders of each member of the Group, associates of the directors
and substantial shareholders of any member of the Group, trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board; and any advisor (professional
or otherwise), consultant, distributor, supplier, agent, customer, joint venture partner, service provider to the Group whom the Board
considers, in its sole discretion, has contributed or contributes to the Group. The Scheme was adopted on 28 August 2006 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from 21 September 2006.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or Substantial Shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding an independent non-executive Director who is the Grantee
of the Options). In addition, any share options granted to a Substantial Shareholder or an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
Shareholders” approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HKS$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of the offer of the share options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT'D)
Equity-settled share option scheme (cont’d)

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price

HKS

2007A 16 March 2007 16 March 2007 to 15 March 2008 16 March 2008 to 15 March 2017 1.68
20078 16 March 2007 16 March 2007 to 15 March 2009 16 March 2009 to 15 March 2017 1.68
2008A 12 March 2008 12 March 2008 to 11 March 2009 12 March 2009 to 11 March 2018 1.62
2008B 12 March 2008 12 March 2008 to 11 March 2010 12 March 2010 to 11 March 2018 1.62
2009A 14 August 2009 14 August 2009 to 13 August 2010 14 August 2010 to 13 August 2019 0.92
20098 14 August 2009 14 August 2009 to 13 August 2011 14 August 2011 to 13 August 2019 0.92
2010A 27 May 2010 27 May 2010 to 26 May 2013 27 May 2013 to 26 May 2020 0.93
20108 27 May 2010 27 May 2010 to 26 May 2014 27 May 2014 to 26 May 2020 0.93
2010C 27 May 2010 27 May 2010 to 26 May 2015 27 May 2015 to 26 May 2020 0.93
2011A 23 May 2011 23 May 2011 to 22 May 2013 23 May 2013 to 22 May 2021 1.06
2011B 23 May 2011 23 May 2011 to 22 May 2014 23 May 2014 to 22 May 2021 1.06

If the options remain unexercised after a period of 10 years from the date of grant, the options expire. Options are forfeited if the employee
leaves the Group before the options vest.

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

2014 2013
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share options exercise price share options exercise price
HK$ HKS
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 51,080,000 1.26 70,580,000 1.21
Forfeited during the year (3,075,000) 1.11 (400,000) 1.06
Exercised during the year (28,255,000) 1.21 (19,100,000) 1.08
QOutstanding at the end of the year 19,750,000 1.35 51,080,000 1.26
Exercisable at the end of the year 15,850,000 1.46 30,530,000 142

The options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.1 years (2013: 5.8 years) and the
exercise price ranges from HK$0.92 to HK$1.68 (2013: HK$0.92 to HK$1.68).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB'000

Investments in a subsidiary 387,768 372,417
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 1,123 1,297
Due from subsidiaries 522,877 442,886
Bank and cash balances 2,120 1,251
Accruals and other payables (2,613) (1,104)
Due to subsidiaries (36,544) (32,796)
Financial guarantee contract liability (47,518) (59,621)
NET ASSETS 827,213 724,330
Share capital 7,504 6,958
Reserves 819,709 717,372
TOTAL EQUITY 827,213 724,330

38. RESERVES
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Company

Convertible Foreign Share-
Share loannotes  currency based Proposed
premium equity translation  payment  Warrants  Retained final
account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  dividend Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

At 1 January 2013 648,627 2951 (90,866) 16,189 267 27,041 10,187 614,39
Share-based payments - - - 2,790 - - - 2,790
Issue of shares on subscription (note 35(d)) 66,995 - - - - - - 66,995
Issue of shares on exercise of warrants (note 35(b)) 19,035 - - - (267) - - 18,768
Issue of shares on exercise of share options

(note 35(c)) 21315 - - (5,006) - - - 16,309
Share options forfeited - - - (85) - - - (85)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (11412) - - 21,045 - 9,633
Dividends paid - - - - - (1,247) (10,187) (11,434)
2013 proposed final dividend - - - - - (11,564) 11,564 -
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 755,972 2,951 (102,278) 13,888 - 35,275 11,564 717,372
Share-based payments - - - 2,133 - - - 2,133
Issue of shares on subscription (note 35(f)) 58,784 - - - - - - 58,784
Issue of warrants (note 35(g)) - - - - 160 - - 160
Issue of shares on exercise of share options

(note 35(e)) 36,268 - - (9,057) - - - 27,211
Share options forfeited - - - (832) - 832 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 7,505 - - 18,281 - 25,786
Dividends paid - - - - - (173) (11,564) (11,737)
2014 proposed final dividend - - - - - (6,401) 6,401 -
At 31 December 2014 851,024 2,951 (94,773) 6,132 160 47,814 6,401 819,709
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38. RESERVES (CONT’'D)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share premium account of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to directors and employees of the Group recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for equity-
settled share-based payments in note 3(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the shares of subsidiaries acquired and the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company as consideration thereof pursuant to the reorganisation as set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 11 September 2006.

Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves, which are non-distributable, are appropriated from the profit after taxation of the Group's PRC

subsidiaries under the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC.
Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 3(d)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements.

Convertible loan notes equity reserve

The convertible loan notes equity reserve represents the value of the unexercised equity component of convertible notes
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for convertible loans in note 3(o) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Warrants reserve

Warrants reserve represents fair value of consideration received from the subscription of warrants as details in note 35(g). It is
transferred to share premium account when the warrant is exercised or released directly to retained profits when the warrant
is expired.
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39.

40.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 20 January 2014, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of FIITE B /B/KITIZER AR (Shenzhen Marine
Diving Engineering Co., Ltd.) (“SZ Marine”) for a cash consideration of RMB6,300,000. SZ Marine was engaged in provision of undersea
maintenance services during the period and was acquired to enable the Group to participate in undersea maintenance service business
and to broaden the source of income.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of SZ Marine acquired as at the date of acquisition is as follows:

RMB'000
Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment 1,095
Intangible assets 2,900
Trade receivables 479
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 104
Bank and cash balances 92
Trade payables (393)
Accruals and other payables (181)
4,096
Goodwill 2,204
Satisfied by:
Cash 6,300
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration paid 6,300
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (92)
6,208

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of SZ Marine is attributable to the anticipated profitability of the distribution of the Group's services
in the new market and the anticipated future operating synergies from the combination.

SZ Marine contributed approximately RMB7,071,000 to the Group's turnover for the year and contributed loss of approximately
RMB650,000 to the Group's profit for the year for the period between the date of acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2014, the Group's turnover for the period would have no change and profit for the
year would have been approximately RMB28,303,000. The proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of the turnover and results of operations of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2014, nor is intended to be a projection of future results.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities (2013: Nil).
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41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group's capital commitments at the end of reporting period are as follows:

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000

Property, plant and equipment
Contracted but not provided for 1,142 51,481

42. LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2014 the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

2014 2013

RMB’'000 RMB'000

Within one year 2,673 8,020
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 1,917 1,652
After five years 588 612
5,178 10,284

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office, staff quarters, warehouses, machineries and
motor vehicles. Leases are negotiated for an average term of 2 years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not include
contingent rentals.

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions with its related parties during the year:

2014 2013

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

Sales of materials to an associate, Penglai Jutal - 248
Contract revenue and other sales income received/receivable from a
related company, Dalian Shipbuilding Industry Offshore Company

Limited (“Dalian Shipbuilding Offshore”) (a) 83,941 64,455

Contract revenue received/receivables from a related company,
Ocean Shine Decal Industries (Shenzhen) Ltd (“Ocean Shine”) (b) 181 -
(a) Dalian Shipbuilding Offshore is an associate of Prospering Investments Limited, a Company beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Lishan, the chairman of

the Company, an executive director and is the ultimate controlling party of the Company. At 31 December 2014, contract revenue receivable of approximately
RMB12,138,000 (2013: RMB374,000) from Dalian Shipbuilding Offshore was included in the Group's trade and bills receivables.

(b) Ocean Shine is a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Lishan, the chairman of the Company, an
executive director and is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

The related party transactions with Dalian Shipbuilding Offshore constitute as continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, further details of which are included in the Directors’ Report on pages 23 to 24.

44. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2015.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

(All amounts in RMB'000 unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL DATA ANNOUNCED IN PREVIOUS FIVE YEARS

INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Turnover 428,066 493,348 608,614 889,827 950,881
Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company 67,472 9,306 41,394 55,645 28,456

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Total assets 823,262 1,059,559 1,269,569 1,595,612 1,728,262
Total liabilities (166,870) (234,497) (395,294) (577,058) (601,893)
Total equity 656,392 825,062 874,275 1,018,554 1,126,369

Notes:

1. The results for the year ended 31 December 2010, 31 December 2011, 31 December 2012, 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014, and assets and liabilities as at 31
December 2010, 31 December 2011, 31 December 2012 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 were extracted from the audited consolidated statement of profit or
loss and the audited consolidated statement of financial position.
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